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July 13, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable -Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as

i

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, and 2020-14, Governor
Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health

Services, to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with vendors

listed in bold below to support emergency operations conducted by the Regional Public Health

Networks statewide in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, by increasing the price limitation by

$794,999 from $9,309,932 to $10,104,931, effective retroactive to March 16, 2020, with no
change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#78E. They were then subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on February
5, 2020, item #7; and on May 6, 2020, item #47. ‘

Vendor Name | Vendor | Contract | Area Served Current Increase Revised
Code Number Amount {Decrease) Amount
City of : Greater -
Manchester | 177433 | 1068192 | o chester $1,044,885 | $240,000 | $1,284,885
City of Nashua® | 177441 | 1070165 | Greater Nashua | $731,156 $0 $731,156
County of Great :
. 1068196 reater
Granite United Concord,
ranite Unite Carroll County
1068198 ’
Way 160015 and South $2,079,571 $150,000 $2,229,571
Central ‘
Greater .
Seacoast -
Community | 154703 | 1088193 ggﬂf‘f&'d $690,800 $50,000 $740,800
Health
Lakes Region
Partnershi -
for pub,icp - | 165635 | 1068197 | winnipesaukee | $665,216 $50,000 $715,216
Health
Lampre
Heamf' c:,e 177677 | 1068952 | geacoast $734,643 $50,000 $784,643

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families

in providing opporiunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Mary

Hitchcock Greater

Memorial | 177160 | 177160 | sullivan  and | $1,418,853 | $105,000 | $1,523,853
Hospital Upper Valley

Mid-State :
Health Center | 158055 | 1068130 | Central NH $647,878 $50,000 $697,878
North Country

Health 158557 | 1068199 | North Country | $682,138 $49,999 $732,137
Consortium
Total $9,309,932 | $794,999 | $10,104,931

*The amendment with the City of Nashua is currently pending and will be submitted to a future G&C
meeting.

Funds afe available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Fiscal Details Attached
EXPLANATION

The Department requested that the Governor retroactively approve these amendments
because the Regional Public Health Networks began mobilizing emergency operations across
their respective regions in response to COVID-19 in March 2020. This item is Sole Source
because MOP 150 requires any amendment to a contract be labeled as sole source when: (1)
the contracts were originally approved as sole source; and (2) the funding increase exceeds the
original price limitation by 10 percent. The Contractors are activating their regions' Multi-Agency
Coordination Entity at a level appropriate to meet the needs of the COVID-19 response. The
Contractors will continue to improve the regional public health response and support the
healthcare system response, while making sure the regional response actions incorporate the
latest guidelines and direction issued by the Department. To ensure the health and safety of the
response workforce in each region, the Contractors are also implementing staff resiliency
programs, information, and referrals to responder mental health support. Information is being
disseminated to the public by the Contractors in coordination with the Department’s messaging.
In addition to these activities, the Contractors are making preparations to conduct additional
operations once a COVID-19 vaccine becomes available.

The population served are all residents in each of the respective public health regions
statewide. Every community is assigned to a public health region. The Regional Public Heaith
Networks coordinate public health response activities across municipalities and community
sectors to ensure share situational awareness and coordinated actions. The Contractors have
been coordinating the planning and response of public health emergencies for the past fifteen
(15) years. The experience and knowledge each of these networks brings to assist the
Department to the COVID-19 Pandemic will immensely assist in the current efforts.

The Department will monitor contracted services by requiring the Contractors to submit:

« Quarterly public health emergency preparedness progress reports using an online
system administered by the DPHS.

s After Action Reports and Improvement Plans.

= Documentation of each COVID-19 response aciivity completed. -
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Area served: Statewide
Source of Funds: CFDA #93.354, FAIN # NUSOTP922106

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectffjlly submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunitiez for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

05-95-90-901010-8011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS5, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Reavised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
: Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sv¢ 80001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Medified
' Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 %0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15.000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 30 $30,000
Granile United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
- Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 50001022 $15,000 $0 $15.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 ¢ Contracts for Prog Sve 80001022 $15,000 50 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Meodified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 30 $30,000
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Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor # 165635-8001

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decraased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
’ Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
_Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15.000 $0 $15.000
Sub-Total $30,000 g0 $30,000
Mary Hitchcock Memcrial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-8003
) Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class f Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
] Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 30 $30,000
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
- Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80001022 $15.000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total 330,000 $0 $30,000
-Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {(Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 30 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 30 $30,000
North Country Health Consortium \endor # 158557-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90001022 $15 000 $0 $15.000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000
SUB TOTAL $380,000 $0 $390,000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks {RPHN)

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SQCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,

X BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS
74% Fedaral Funds & 26% General Funds

CFDA #93.069 FAIN #U90TP922018
City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $182,673 $0 $182,673
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2020 $197,673 $0 $197,673
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $179,673 $0 $179,673
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2021 $194 673 $0 $194,673
|Sub-Total $392,346 $0 $392 346
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $92 810 $0 $92 910
Sub Total 2020 $92 910 $0 $92,910
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc | 90077410 $89.910 $0 $89,910
Sub Total 2021 $89,910 $0 $89,910
|Sub-Total $182,820 $0 $182,620
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077410 $80,580 $0 $80,580
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077028 $15 000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2020 $92 580 $0 $92,580
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077410 $77.580 $0 $77.580
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2021 $92,580 $0 $92,580
|Sub-Tota! $185.160 $0 $185,160
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Medified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $96 430 $0 $96 430
Sub Total 2020 $96,430 30 $96,430
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve | 90077410 $93,430 301 $93,430
Sub Total 2021 $93,430 $0 $93.430
{Sub-Total - * $189,860 $0 $189,860
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Granite United Way - Carroll County Region

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks {RPHN)

Vendor # 160015-B001

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $86,600 50 $86,600
Sub Total 2020 $86 600 $0 $86,600
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc | 90077410 $83,600 30 $83,600
Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83 600
[Sub-Total $170,200 $0 $170,200
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077410 $82 360 $0 $82 360
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2020 $97 360 £0 $97,360
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80077410 $79,360 $0 $79,360
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2021 $94 360 $0 $94,360
{Sub-Total $191,720 $0 $191,720
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077410 $82 675 $0 $82,675
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077028 $15000 30 $15,000
Sub Total 2020 $97 675 $0 $97,675
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077410 $79.675 $0 $79.8675
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svec 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15.000
Sub Total 2021 $94 675 $0 $94 675
|Sub-Total $192,350 $0 $192,350
t.akes Region Partnership for Public Health Veandor # 165635-B001 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for'Prog Sve 90077410 $89,750 $0 $89,750
Sub Total 2020 $89,750 $0 $89,750
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc | 90077410 $86,750 $0 $86,750
Sub Total 2021 $86,750 $0 $86,750
|Sub-Tota! $176,500 $0 $176,500
Manchester Health Depardment Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $273,223 %0 $273,223
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total 2020 $288 223 30 $288,223
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $270,223 $0 $270,223
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sv¢ 80077028 $15,000 30 $15,000
Sub Total 2021 $285,223 30 $285,223
ISub-Total $573 446 $0 $573,446
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region

Vendor # 177160-8003

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 50077410 $86,600 $0 386,600
Sub Total 2020 $86,600 30 $86,600
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracls for Prog Sve | 90077410 $83,600 30 $83,600
Sub Total 2021 $83,600 30 $83,600
|Sub-Total $170,200 $0 $170,200
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Madified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $86,600 %0 $86,600
Sub Total 2020 $86,600 30 $86,600
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc [ 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83 600
Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83,600
|Sub-Total $170,200 30 $170,200
Mid-5tate Health Center Vendor # 158055-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $83,600 30 $83,600
Sub Total 2020 $83,600 30 $83,600
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc [ 90077410 $83 600 $0 $83,600
Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83,600
|Sub-Total $167,200 $0 $167,200
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracls for Prog Sve 90077410 $91,550 $0 $91 550
. Sub Total 2020 $91,550 30 $91,550
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve | 80077410 $88,550 $0 $88,550
Sub Total 2021 $88,550 30 $88,550
Sub-Total $180,100 $0 $180,100
SUB TOTAL $2,942,102 $0 $2,942,102
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

05-95-92.920510-3380 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PREVENTION SVS

97% Federal Funds & 3% General Funds

CFDA #93,959 FAIN #TI1010035
City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-8011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $91,162 $0 $91,162
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $41,243 $0 $41.243
Sub Total 2020 $132,405 50 $132,405
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 82057502 $91,162 $0 $91,162
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $41,243 £0 $41,243
Sub Total 2021 $132,405 $0 $132,405
|Sub-Total $264, 810 $0 $264 810
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Caoniracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $94 324 $0 $94 324
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracls for Prog Svc 92057504 $39,662 30 $39 662
Sub Total 2020 $133,986 $0 $133,986
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $94 324 $0 $04,324
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $39 662 $0 $39,662
Sub Total 2021 $133,986 $0 $133,986
|Sub-Total $267.972 $0 $267,972
Greater Seacoast Community Health Veandor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget | {Decreased) Meodified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $85,917 30 $85917
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $45 634 $0 $45634
Sub Total 2020 $131,551 30 $131,551
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $82,380 $0 $82,380
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $45 634 $0 $45 634
Sub Total 2021 $128 014 50 $128,014
[Sub-Total $259,565 $0 $259,565
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-BO01
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Conltracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $93,014 $0 $93.014
SFY 2020 102-500731 |Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40,250 $0 $40,250
. Sub Total 2020 $133,264 $0 $133,264
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $93,015 $0 $93,015
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40,250 $0 $40,250
Sub Total 2021 $133,265 50 $133,265
|Sub-Total $266,529 50 $266,529
Granite United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $93121 $0 $93.121
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40 264 $0 $40,264
Sub Total 2020 $133,385 $0 $133,385
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $93,121 30 $93,121
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40,264 $0 $40,264
Sub Total 2021 $133,385 50 $133,385
[Sub-Total $266,770 $0 $266,770
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Granite United Way -South Central Region

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor # 160015-B001

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $93 375 30 $93 375
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40137 $0 $40,137
Sub Total 2020 $133.512 $0 $133,512
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $93,375 30 $93.375
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40,137 $0 $40.137
Sub Total 2021 $1335612 $0 $133,512
|Sub-Total $267,024 $0 $267 024
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Titie Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 588 649 30 $88,649
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $42,500 $0 $42,500
Sub Total 2020 $131,149 $0 $131,149
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $88,649 $0 $88,649
SFY 2021 102-500731 Caontracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $42 500 30 $42 500
Sub Total 2021 $131,149 $0 $131,149
|Sub-Totat $262 298 30 $262,298
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 82057502 $84,367 30 $84 367
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $44 641 $0 $44 641
Sub Total 2020 $129,008 $0 $129.008
SFY 2021 102-560731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $84,367 50 $84 367
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for.Prog Sve 92057504 $44 641 $0 $44 641
Sub Total 2021 $129,008 $0 $129,008
{Sub-Total $258,018 $0 $258,016
Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $98,040 $0 $98,040
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37.805 $0 $37,805
Sub Total 2020 $135,845 $0 $135,845
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $98,040 $0 $98,040
SFY 2021 102-500731 Caontracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37.805 30 $37,805
Sub Total 2021 $1235 845 $0 $135,845
|Sub-Total $271,690 $0 $271,690
Mary Hitchcock Memoria! Hospitat - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-8003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057502 $99,275 $0 $99,275
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37.087 30 $37,087
Sub Total 2020 $136,362 $0 $136,362
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $09,275 $0 $99,275
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 82057504 $37,087 $0 $37,087
Sub Total 2021 $136,362 30 $136,362
[Sub-Total $272,724 $0 $272,724
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region

Vendor # 177160-B003

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year - Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $96,125 $0 $96,125
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,037 $0 $37.037
Sub Total 2020 $133,162 $0 $133,162
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $99 575 30 $99,575
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,037 $0 $37,037
Sub Total 2021 $136612 $0 $136,612
[Sub-Total $269 774 $0 $269,774
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $78,453 30 $78,453
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40 098 $0 $40,098
Sub Total 2020 $118,551 $0 $118,551
SFY 2021 102-500721 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $03 453 $0 $93,453
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40.098 $0 $40,058
) Sub Total 2021 $133,551 30 $133,551
|Sub-Total $252,102 $0 $252,102
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
- Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $92 488 $0 $92 488
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svec 92057504 $40,581 $0 $40,581
Sub Total 2020 $133,069 $0 $133,069
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $92,488 50 $92 488
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92057504 $40,581 30 $40,581
Sub Total 2021 $133,069 $0 $133,069
Sub-Total $266,138 $0 $266,138
SUB TOTAL $3,445 412 $0 $3,445,412

05-95-92.920510-3395 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PFS2 ’

100% Federal Funds

CFDA #93.243 FAIN #5P020796
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B00A
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $105375 $0 $105,375
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $0 $22,500
Sub-Total $127.875 $0 $127,875
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Maodified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $104,991 $0 $104,991
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $0 $22 500
Sub-Total $127 491 $0 $127 491
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Granite United Way - Carroil Counly Region

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor # 160015-B001

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $139,099 50 $139,099
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22.500 30 $22,500
Sub-Total $161,599 $0 $161,599
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $99678 $0 $99.678
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $0 $22 500
Sub-Total $122.178 $0 $122.178
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $105.876 30 $105,876
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $20,608 $0 $20,608
Sub-Total $126 484 $0 $126,484
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $90.000 $0 $90.000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22 500 $0 $22 500
Sub-Total $112,500 $0 $112,500
Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised’
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $117,249 $0 $117,249
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22 500 30 $22,500
Sub-Total $139,749 $0 $139,749
Mary Hitchcock Memaorial Hospita! - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $80.750 30 $80,750
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $20,213 $0 $20,213
Sub-Tolal $100,963 30 $100,963
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $127,287 30 $127,287
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $20,805 $0 $20,805
Sub-Total $148,092 $0 $148,092
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks {(RPHN}

Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
] Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $90,000 $0 $90,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92052410 $22,500 $0 $22,500
Sub-Total $112,500 80 $112,500
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 156557-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Meodified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $90,000 $0 $90.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22 500 $0 $22,500
Sub-Total $112,500 $0 $112,500
SUB TOTAL $1,391,921 $0 $1,391,931

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION

100% Federal Funds

CFDA #93.268 FAIN #H23IP000757
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-BO01
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8,182 30 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 30 %0 $0
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sv¢ $0 $0 $0
Sub-Totat $8,182 $0 $8.182
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Conitracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Coniracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15.000
Sub-Total $38,182 30 $38,182
Granite United Way - Capilol Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Titie Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 50023103 $8 180 $0 $8,180
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 50023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $38,180 $0 $35,180
Granite United Way - Carro!! County Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 50 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Totat $38,182 $0 $38,182
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 " |Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $7.000 50 37,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 30 30 30
Sub-Total $15,182 $0 $15,182
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Reavised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8,182 30 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 50 $0
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,182 $0 $8. 1682
Lakes Region Parinership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
: Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tille Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8.182 30 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 20023013 $15,000 30 $15,000
Sub-Total $38,182 $0 $38,182
Manchester Health Depariment Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve . $0 $0 30
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $7,000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $7.000 $0 $7,000
City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 30 $0
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $7 000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 30 30
Sub-Total $7,000 30 $7.000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sultivan County Region

Vendor # 177160-B003

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number - Current Budget {Decreasad} Modified .
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 515,000
Sub-Total $38,182 $0 $38,182
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tilé Job Number Current Budget {Decreased} Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 30 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80023013 $22 000 $0 $22,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $45 182 $0 $45 182
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80023103 $6,058 $0 $6,058
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $36,058 $0 - $36,058
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
. Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $38,182 30 $38,182
SUB TOTAL $155,876 $0 $355,876

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL PREPAREDNESS

100% Federal Funds

F 07 R:] FAIN #US0TPO00535
City of Nashua Vandor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 50 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
. Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
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Greater Seacoast Community Health

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor # 154703-B001

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svec 80077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 -$10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 g0 $20,000
Granite United Way - Carroll County Region Vendar # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $£10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10.000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Tota! $20,000 30 $20,000
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budgst
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 : $10,000 30 $10,000
Sub-Tota! $20,000 30 $20.000
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20.000
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
- Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 30 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 20 $20,000{
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Manchester Health Department

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor # 177433-B009

Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Dacreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
- Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
Mary Hilchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077700 $10,000 50 $10.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 %0 $20,000
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 30 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 20077700 $10,000 30 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-8001
‘ Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 30 $20,000
North Country Heatth Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
tncreased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90077700 $10,000 30 $10,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sv¢ 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Sub-Total $20,000 30 $20,000
SUB TOTAL $260,000 $0 $260,000

05:95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PREVENTION

City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011

Increased Revised

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified

Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90035000 $5,403 30 $5,403
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $2 467 30 $2,467
Sub-Total $9.070 $0 $9,070
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks {RPHN)

County of Cheshira Vendor # 177372-B001
: Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Currant Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $5 403 $0 $5,403
SFY 2021 102-500731 Coniracts for Prog Sve $2 467 $0 $2 467
Sub-Total " $9,070 30 $9,070
Greater Seaccast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 50 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $6, 484 $0 $6,484
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $3,207 $0 $3.207
Sub-Total $10,891 $0 $10.891
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $6,484 30 $6,484
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve $3,207 $0 $3,207
Sub-Total $10 891 $0 $10,891
Granita United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-B0M
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $5,403 $0 $5,403
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $2,467 $0 $2.467
Sub-Total $9.070 . 30 $9.070
Granile United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-BC01
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 30 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $5,403 30 $5,403
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $2,467 $0 $2 467
Sub-Total $9.,070 $0 $9.070
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $5,403 $0 $5,403
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc $2,467 30 $2,467
Sub-Total $9.070 $0 $9.070
Lakes Region Parinership for Public Health Veandor # 165635-B001 .
- Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 © $6,484 $0 $6,484
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $3,207 $0 $3,207
Sub-Total $10,891 $0 $10,891
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN}

Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B003 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year - Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,800 30 $1,800
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $3,000 30 $3.000
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $7.822 $0 $7.822
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $4,123 30 $4,123
Sub-Total $13,145 $0 $13,145
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $6.914 $0 $6,914
[SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $42.108 $0 $42,108
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $4,124 $0 $4,124
Sub-Total $53,146 $0 $53,146
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
- Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $6,484 $0 $6,484
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $3,207 $0 $3,207
Sub-Total $10,891 30 $10,891
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
. Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 50 $1,200
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90036000 $7,822 $0 $7.822
SFY 2021 102-5007 11 Contracts for Prog Svc $4,123 $0 $4 123
Sub-Total $13,145 30 $13,145
SUB TOTAL $171,350 $0 $171,350

05-95-90-902510-5170 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, Disease

Control
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 51,818 $0 $1.818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 30 $0 30
Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7.000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve §0 30 30
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

[ | [~ [Sub-Total | $8 818| $0] $8.818]
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $1,820 $0 $1,820
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 1 Contracts for Prog Sve 30 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,820 $0 $£8,820
Granite United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 30 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Preg Svc 90027026 $7,000 30 §7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 30 $0
Sub-Total $8,818 30 $8.818
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased - Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $1,818 $0 $1,818
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
tncreased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budgetl
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $1,818 30 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 30 $7.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Centracts for Prog Sve 30 $0 30
Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
) Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $1.818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8.818
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svg 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,818 30 $8.818
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) | - Modified
Amount - Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve $0 $0 $0
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 30 $0
Sub-Total $1,818 30 $1,818
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Mid-State Health Center

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks {(RPHN)

Vendor # 158055-8001

Increased Revised

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified

Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $6,818

North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001

Increased Revised

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified

Amount Budget
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 80027026 $1,818 30 $1.818
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027026 $7.000 $0 $7,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 30 $0 $0
Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8 818
SUB TOTAL $83,000 $0 $83,000

05-95-90-901510-7936 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION

County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000
Sub-Total $80,000 $0 $80,000
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Sve 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90007936 $29,511 30 $29,511
Sub-Total $69.511 $0 $69 511
SUB TOTAL $149,511 $0 $149,511

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH TRACKING

City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 20004100 $4 230 30 $4. 230
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700
Sub-Total $7.930] $0 $7.930
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90004100 $4 230 $0 $4,230
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700
Sub-Total $7,830 $0 $7 930
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tille Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks {RPHN}

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 20004100 $4 811 $0 $4.811
Sub-Total $10,309 $0 $10,305
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreasad) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80004100 $5,498 $0 $5.498
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $4,811 $0 $4,811
Sub-Total $10,309 $0 $10,309
Granite United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-8001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreasad) Madified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 20004100 $4 230 $0 $4,230
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700
Sub-Total $7,930 %0 $7,930
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Titla Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $4,230 $0 $4,230
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700
Sub-Total $7.930 £0 $7.930
Lamprey Health Care Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90004100 $4,230 $0 $4,230
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700
Sub-Total $7.930 $0 $7,930
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracls for Prog Sve 90004100 $4.811 $0 $4.811
Sub-Total $10,309 30 $10,309
Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
‘ Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $0 30 30
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 20004100 30 $0 $0
Sub-Total $0 30 $0
Mary Hilchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class 7 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $7,069 $0 $7.069
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80004100 $6,185 50 $6,185
Sub-Total $13,254 20 $13,254
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svg 90004100 $6,022 $0 $6,022
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $7,333 $0 $7,333
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

] ] |Sub-Total [ $13,355] $0] $13,355)
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-8001
- . : increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 54,811 50 $4 811
Sub-Total $10.309 £0 $10,309
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
i - Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 50004100 $7.070 $0 $7,070
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 50004100 $6,185 $0 $£6,185
Sub-Total $13,255 $0 $13,255
SUB TOTAL $120,750 $0 $120,750

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS RESPONSE

City of Nashua Vendor # 177441-B011
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $0 %0
Sub-Total 30 $0 80
County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 30 %0 $0
' Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $£50,000
Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor # 154703-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 30 $0
Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $50,000
Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tille Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 30 30 $0
Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $50,000
Granite United Way - Carroll County Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $50,000
Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN}

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve © 90027027 $0 $0 30
Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $50,000
Lamprey Health Care - Vendor #177677-R001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 30 $50,000 $50.000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 30 50
Sub-Total $0 $50,000 $50,000
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $0 30
Sub-Total $0 $50.000 $50,000
Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget | (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $240,000 $240,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 30 $0 $0
Sub-Total - $0 $240,000 $240,000
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor # 177160-B003
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 30 $0
Sub-Total 30 $50,000 $50,000
Mary Hitchcock Memoria! Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor # 177160-B003 _
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $55,000 $55,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 £0 50 $0
Sub-Total $0 $55,000 $55,000
Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-5007 31 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $50,000 $50,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svec 90027027 $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total 30 $50,000 $50,000
/
North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-B001
Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget {Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 90027027 $0 $49 999 $49 999
SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80027027 $0 $0 $0
Sub-Total $0 $49,999 $45,599
SUB TOTAL $0 $794,999 $794,999
| fToTaL ALl ] $9.309,932]  $794,999] $10,104,931]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the Regional Publlc Health Network Services

This 3@ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services conlract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and City of Manchester, (hereinafter
referred lo as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 1528 Elm St Manchester, NH
03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(llem # 47) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon writlen agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and ’

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,284,885.

2. Add Exhibit A-1 Additional Scape of Services COVID-19 Response, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

3. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2. Program Funding,
Subsection 2.2 to read:;

2.2 The Contractor may be reimbursed for allowable costs dating back to January 20, 2020 for the
provision of services specified in Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID-19 Response.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding by deleting it in its entirety and replacing with Exhibit B-1,
Program Funding, Amendment #3.

City of Manchester Amendment #3 Contractor Initials C.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be eflective upon the Govemors approval issued
under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

AL s wM

Date Name ‘Lisa Morris

Titte: Director ASSX- (l“' (

City of Manchester

_ézré_l_,Q_D__ S Cay
Da Nanfe: Joyce Craig ™~

Title: Mayor

City of Manchester Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendmant having been reviewed by this office, is approved as o form, substance, and
execution,

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 26, 2020 - Q MM Warakadl
Date . ﬂme
Title: Assistant Attorney General

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmenl was approved by the Govemnor approval issued under the
Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date * Name:
- Thtle:
City of Manchestar Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

Additional Scope of Services - COVID-19 Response

1. Scope of Services
1.1.  Emergency Operations

1.1.1. The Contractor shall enact emergency operations across the Regional
Public Health Network for COVID-19 efforts by:

1.1.1.1.  Activating the regions Multi-Agency Coordination Entity (MACE)
at a level appropriate to meet the needs of the response.

1.1.1.2.  Staffing the MACE with the numbers and skills necessary to
support the response and ensure worker safety.

1.1.1.3.  Assessing the region’s public health and healthcare system .
training needs.

1.1.1.4.  Providing training designed to improve the regions public health
: and healthcare system response.

1.1.1.5. Ensuring plans and regions response actions incorporate the
latest DPHS guidance and direction.

1.2. Responder Safety and Health

1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure the health and safety of the public health
response workforce in the Regional Public Health Network, including but not
limited to:

1.2.1.1. Implementing staff resiliency programs, information, and referrals
to responder mental health support.

1.2.1.2. Determining responder safety and health gaps and implementing
correclive actions.

1.2.1.3. Documenting and tracking the Regional Public Health Network's
personal protective equipment inventory.

1.3. Identification of Vulnerable Populations

1.3.1. The Contractor shall identify and implement mitigation strategies for
populations at risk for morbidity, mortality, and other adverse outcomes.

City of Manchester Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials _CIZQ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services:
' Exhibit A-1

1.3.2. The Contractor shall coordinate with governmental and nongovernmental
programs that can be leveraged to provide health and human services and
disseminate information to connect the public with available services.

1.4.  Information Sharing and Public Information

1.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure information regarding the COVID-19 efforts are
provided to the public, including but not limited to:

1.4.1.1. Disseminating information, alerts, warnings, and notifications
regarding risks and self-protective fmeasures to the public,
particularly with at-risk and vulnerable populations and public
health responders.

1.4.1.2. Monitoring local news stories and social media postings to
determine if information is accurate, identify messaging gaps, and
coordinate with DHHS to adjust communications as needed.

1.4.1.3. Coordinating communication messages, products, and programs
with DHHS, key partners and stakeholders to harmonize response
messaging. -

1.5. Distribution and Use of Medical Material

1.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure capacity for a mass vaccination campaign once
a COVID-19 vaccine becomes available, including:

1.5.1.1. Maintaining ability for vaccine-specific cold chain management.

1.5.1.2. Coordinating targeted and mass vaccination clinics for emergency
response.

1.5.1.3. Rapidly identifying high-risk persons requiring vaccine,

1.5.1.4. Planning to prioritize limited medical countermeasures (MCM)
based on guidance from CDC and the Department.

1.5.1.5. Ensuring capacity for distribution of MCM and supplies.

1.6.  Surge Staffing

1.6.1. The Contractor shall activate mechanisms for surging public health
responder staff.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall recruit, enroll, activate, train and deploy volunteers,
including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Medical Reserve Corps (MRC).

1.6.2.2. Citizens Emergency Response Teams (CERT).
City of Manchester Exhibit A-1 Contracter initlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

1.7.  Public Health Coordination with Healthcare Systems

1.7.1.

1.7.2.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Granite State Healthcare Coalition,
its member agencies, and other health care organizations, emergency
management, and other relevant partners and stakeholders to assess the
public health and medical surge needs of the community.

The Contractor shall participate in the activation of Alternative Care Sites as
requested by the sponsoring hospital(s).

1.8. Biosurveillance

1.8.1.

The Contractor shall conduct surveillance and case identification including,
but not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Public health epidemiological investigation activities such as
contact follow-up.

1.8.1.2. Assess risk of travelers and other persons with potential COVID-
19 exposures.

1.8.1.3. Enhance surveillance systems to provide case-based and
aggregate epidemiological data.

1.8.1.4. Ensure data management systems are in place and meet the
needs of the jurisdiction.

1.8.1.5. Ensure efficient and timely data collection.

1.8.1.6. Ensure ability to rapidly exchange data with public health partners
and other relevant partners.

1.9.  Jurisdictional Recovery

1.9.1.

By September 30, 2020, the Contractor shall conduct an After Action Review
of activities conducted to date, including one (1) hotwash, and develop an
After-Action Report /improvement Plan, including corrective actions for
improvement, timelines for their implementation and assignment to
responsible parties, to guide future actions.

1.10. Reporting

1.10.1. The Contractor submit the following Public Health Emergency Preparedness

City of Manchester

information and reports to the Department.

Exhibit A-1 Contracior Initiats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

1.10.1.1.

1.10.1.2.

1.10.1.3.

1.10.1.4.

1.10.1.5.

Information about COVID-19 activities in the current quarterly
PHEP progress reports using an online system administered by
the DPHS.

Documentation for pertinent COVID-19 response activities
necessary to complete the MCM Operational Readiness Review
(ORR) or self-assessment as scheduled by DHHS.

Final After Action Report/improvement Plan for the activity
described in paragraph 1.4.1.

Final After Action Repori(s)/improvement Plan(s) for any other
drill(s) or exercise(s) conducted.

QOther information that may be required by federal and state
funders during the contract period.

1.11. Training and Technical Assistance Requirements

1.11.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and trainings specific to COVID-19
preparedness and response convened by the Department.

City of Manchester

$5-2018-DPHS-28-REGION-01-A03
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
I, Matthew Normand, City Clerk of the City of Manchester, NH do hereby c‘;ertify that:

(1) On May 5, 2020 the Board of Mayor and Aldermen for the City of Manchester, NH voted
to accept funds and enter into a grant agreement with the NH Department of Health and
Human Services for public health preparedness programming;

- (2) The Board of Mayor and Aldermen for the City of Manchester, NH further aulhomcs the
Mayor to execute any documents which may be necessary for this contract;

(3) This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, -
and remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and

(4) The following now occuples the office indicated above:

Joyce Craig, Mayor

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand as the Clty Clerk this 1% day ofJune
2020. :

Matthew Normand, City Clerk

'STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

On this the 1st day of June 2020, before me Kristen Bibeau, the undersigned officer, personally
appeared Matthew Normand, who acknowledged their self to be the City Clerk for the City of
Manchester, NH, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose
therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; 1 hereunto set my and official seal.

Justice of the Peace/Notary Public

Commission Expiration Date:




Qatt? 'C’

Kevin J. O'Neil
_ Risk Manager -

CITY OF MANCHESTER
Office of Risk Management

CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

NH DHHS
129 Plessant Stroet
Concord, New Hampshu'c 03301-3857

Thn certificate is issued s 8 matier of information only and confers no nghts upon the
certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend of alter the coverage within the
“finaneial limits of RSA 507-B as follows:

' Limits of Linbility (in thousands 000)

- GENEBRAL LIABILITY Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Each Person 328
E.a.ch Ocdunencc ) ' _ 1000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Bodnly Tojury and-Property Damugc .
~ ' Each Person 325
Each Occurrence : X 1000

WORKER'S COMPENSATION  Statutery Limits

The City of Manchester, New Hampshire majstains a Scif-Insured, Set-Funded Program
and retains outside claim service edministration. All coverages are continuous until
otherwise notificd. Effective on the date Ccmﬁcale issued and expiring upon completion
of contract. Notwithstanding any requirements, term or condition of any contract or other.
documnent with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the -
coverage afforded by the Limits described herein is subject ta all the tcrms, exclusions and
_ condilions of RSA 507-B.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONSILOCATIONICONTRACT PERIOD
For the City of Manchester's Regional Public Health Network Services Contract from
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021

lssued the 15* day of May, 2019

W Pl

Risk Managcr

Oune City Hall Plazo « Manchester, New Hampablec 03101 + (603) 624-650) « FAX: {(603) 62‘-6518
TTY: 1-800-7)3-2964

E-Mall: hopelk@muncheiernh.goy « Webslie: www.meachesternh.goy



Annes J. Thomas, MPH

Public Health Direcror -
CITY OF MANCHESTER
Health Department
'BOARD OF HEALTH MEMBERS:

Reverend Richard D. Clegg
Senior Pastor . -
FaithBridge Church

- 301 S Main St
Manchester NH 03102

- (603) 623-5292
www.FaithBridgeNH org

" Stephanie P. Hewitt, MSN, FNP-BC
Southein New Hamgshire University
2500 North River Road

.Manchester NH 03106
(603) 494-2343

Efien-Smith Tourigny
Certified Chemistry Teacher
Centrat High School

191 N Gate Rd-
Manchester NH 03104
 (603)623-5328

.Tanya A. Tupick, D.0.

Catholic Medical Center Urgent Care
5 Washington Place, Suite 1B
Bedford NH 03310

(603) 232-7521

Revised 11.19.18 ch

BOARD OF HEALTH
Reverend Richard D. Clegg

' Stephanie P. Hewit, MSN. FNP-8C

_ Ellen Smith Tourigny
Tanya A. Tupick DO



Anna J. Thomas athoirﬁg s@manchesternh.qov {603) 65 7.2700 [Busihessg'

(603) 3964432 (Work Cell)

1528 Eim Suea. New Hampshire 0)10! .
PHILOSOPHY

Results Oriemed Lender Pursuing Innavative Approaches to Measursbly Improve the Health nnd Quality of Life of Cornrnunmes
Strong Interpersonal Skills Combined with Independence, Adaplubuhry and Ability 1o Make ond implement Difficuh Decisions.

HONORS AND INTERESTS

" Selected 2017 Kresge Foundation Emerging Leader in Public Heaith
. Awarded 2015 Jack Lighifoot Yeice for Children Awnrd, Child and Family Services of NH
Awerded 2014 Community Leaderthip Awand, Menta) Heshih Center of Greater Manchester
Nominated 2013 White House Champion of Change for Public Health ead Prevention
Awarded 2009 Key to the Ciry of Manchesier, Presenicd by the Honorable Mayor Frank C. Guints
. Awarded 2008 University of New Hampshire Departmend of Health Management and Policy Alumni Aword
Awarded 2006 “Top Forty Under Farty in NH", The Union Leader and the Business end Indusiry Associstion of NH
Awarded 1598 Most Valuable Officer, Medicel Command. New Hampshire Army National Guard
Awarded 1997 Smoke Free New Hampshire Alliance Award of Merit
Awnrded 1995 Employee of the Year, Ciry of Manchester Depantment of Health \
Adjunct Instructor, Dartmouth College, Danmouth Medical Schoo! -
Guest Lecwurer, University of New Hampshire, School of Health and Human Services
Insuructor, New Hampshire dnstitute for Loca! Public Heotth Practice

EOUCATION
Master of Public Health .
Groduaie Cenificate in Public Health

Principles ol‘Epud:muologyIQuamnwuve Methods
8.5. Health Menagemen snd Policy

CONTINUING EDUCATION -

* Leadership Academy and Quatity Customer Service
Avoid-Deny-Defead Active Shooter Truining

. Cuhure ond Codiural Effectiveness
Not on My Wetch/Creating Child Sale Environments
Reasongble Suspicion Training for Supervisors
WMD Incident Management/Unified Commond
Natigaa! Incident Managemeni System introduction,

Dn.rimoulh Geisel School oI'Medicinc', TO!, Hanover, NH

Introduciion to the [CS and ICS for Initia) Action Incidens

Introduction Lo GIS for Public Health Applications
Introduction 1o Public Health Survcillance
Measuring the Heelthy People 2000 Objectives

_ HIV/AIDS Counselor Partner Notification

CERTIFICATIONS
Resulis-Based Accounabiliry Professional Cenification
Mentol Health First Aid USA
Aduh CPRIAED, Pcdisiric CPR and Firs) Aud
Bosic Emergency Medica! Technician
Aerobic/Fitness Instructor

LEADERSHIP i
Greater Manchesier Chamber of Commerce
Norwin S, and Elimbeth N. Bean Foundation
Sv. Cetherine of Siena Elcmcnnry School
Granite United Way

Board Member, Manchester, NH

. _ 'ond Board of Direclars, Manchesier, NH

Mary Gale Foundation
Neighborhood Health Improvemen Strategy .
COC Health Peomotion Research Cenier gt Danmoulh

Greater Manchester Association Socinl Service Agencics

Media Power Youth

Moyor’s Study Commitice on Sex Offenders
Mental Heelth Center of Gresser Manchester
Lecdership New Hampshire

Seniors Count Initiative — Eesterseals NH
New Hampshire Public Health Association

Chair and Trustee, Manchester, MH

Leadership Team Founding Member, Mnnchc.s::r NH  1995-Present -~
Board of Direcions, Lebenon, NH 2013-20!8
Exccutive Board, Manchesier NH 19972017
Board of Directors, Manchester, NH 2007.2014
Member, Manchester, NH . 2008.2009
Board of Oirectors, Manchester, NH - 2002-2008
Associate, Concord, NH 20062007
Member, Manchesier, NH 2004.2006
Boerd of Directors, Concord, NH

2003
Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health, 2001
Balimore, MD - CDC Schalership Recipient S
Harverd T. H. Chan School of Public Health, Cambridge. MA 1996
University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH - 1989
U.5. Army Scholorship Reciplent
Ciry of Manchester Human Resources Depastment, NH' 2007
City of Manchesier Police Department, NH ’ 2016
Southern New Hampshire AHEC, Raymond, NH - 20187
Diocese of Manchester, Manchester, NH 01)
City of Manchesier. Humbn Re&ourcel ‘Depantment, N 2010
Domestic Preparedness Cnrnpus. Texas A & M University 2008-
Emergency Management institute, Emmitsburg, MD 2008
COCMetiona! Center for Henlth Sumsncs Washmg'lon DC.. 1998
COC/Emory University, Allants, GA 1997
" CDC/stional Center for Health Statistics, Washmgton oC 1993
NH Dcpn.nmcm of Health and Human Services, Concord, NH 1995
Clear Impoct, LLC, Rockville, MD Expecied 2019
Netional Council for Behovioral Health, Manchester, NH 016
City of Monchester Health Deparmicn, Manchester, NH 2016
Natigna) Registry of EMT's, Derry, NH 1995
.SANTE, Dover, NH 1948

2019.Fresent

_ Past Chair and Trusiee, Manchester, NH 2014-Presént
Board of Directors, Monchesier, NH 2014-Present
Chair-Southemn Region Community Jmpect Comminee  2008-Present

2007-Present

1999-2003



Anna J. Thomas . - Page Two (continued)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - ,
CITY OF MANCHESTER HEALTH DEPARTMENT Manchester, NH 1994 - Prasemt

Pubtic Hebdlth Director 09/18 - Present

Serves as the Chiel Administrative Officer for the Deparimént prowdmg adminisirative oversight 10 21 operetions
and activities including exclusive personnel responsibility, supemscry suthority end budgetary aulhonry

Supervises the rovtine assessment of the health of the communify and rccommcnds appropriste policies, ordlnancr_t
end programs to imgrove the health of the community

Oversees investigations, communicable disease conul, cnwmnmcntai inspections and mvesugallom necesary
10 protect the public health and is also responsible for the provision of school health services in Manchestee

Mainioing effective working relstionships with dther City employees, the Board of Moyor and Aldermen, business
end communily groups, oulside sudilors; Smc and Fedent officials, representatives of the medis and the public

Scrves as the CEO of the Manchester Health Care for the Homeless Program (HRSA 130-h)

Deputy Public Health Director 05/07 - 8/18
Provided Menagement, Supervisory, Budgemry ond Technical Expentise Relaled to the Funclions of a
Multidisciplinary Local Public Health Deparment as Well as Other Human Service and Funding Organizations
Oirccied Complex Public Health Assessment Activities and Design Community Inlcrvcnmn Stratcgies
To Address Public Health Concerns and Resident Needs
Coordinated the Administrotion of Muliiple Grent Programs and Pasticipate in Resource Dcveiopmcm
for the Department anid the Community
“Instrumental in Securing the Robert Wood Johnsan Culture of Helth Prize for the Ciry of Manchesicr
03 One of Only Seven Communilics Awarded Nationally in 2016 '
Assurncd Duties of Public Heallh Dircctor u MNeeded
Public Heolth Admiaistrator - 06706 - 08/07
Headed the Community Epidemiology and O:scuc Prevention Dmnon and Provided OpcranonaI Suppon
to Commuaicable Diszase Control Funciions
Provided Federal end Siave Grant Coordination end Leadership to Community Health Improvcmcm Initintives
Assumed Duties of Public Healih Oirector as Needed '

Community Epndemlolog!slfﬂcnllh Alert Network Coordinalar 11102 - 06706
- Headed the Public Health Atsessment and Plenning Division and the Heolth Alen Network of Grealer Manchester )
Provided Oversight to Federally-Funded Projects and Staff Including the U.S. Deparimem of Justite Weed & Seed Strategy
83 well a3 the COC’s Racial and Ethnic Approaches 1o Community Health 2010 Initiative .
Analyzed Population-Based Health Ststistics and Provided Recommendations for Action in tie Communily
for Public Heshh improvement and Performance Measuremen
Public Health Epidemiologis . 08796 - 11702 .
Ocfincd Key Public Health Indicaiors snd Conducied Qngoing Assessment of Community Health Stalus
Provided Continuous Analysis of Priority Areas-as ideatified by the Community to Help Shape Local end State Policies
end Direction for Implementation of Effective Public Healih Models
Local Pantnership Member in the Kellogg end Robert Wood Johnson Foundnmns Nuiional Tuming Point [nitintive,
'Collebommg forn New Cenlury in Public Helth”
Tobatco Prevention Coalition Coordinator - 1195 - 12196
Mobilized the Community Through Youth Driven Initiatives
Addressed Youth Acczss 10 Tobacco Products
Prcvenlcd the Initiztion of Tobacco Use by Children md Teens

Commumly Hesith Coordinstor - 11/94 - 12196
Anslyzed and Addressed Public Health Needs of Low-1Income and Underserved Populstions
-Coordinated Public Heolth Services with Cammuniry Heslih end Social Service Providers
Project Coordinator for “Our Public Health™ Monthly Cable TV Program with 50,000 Houschold Vlcwershnp
Editor end Layout Designer for Quarterly Ncwsh:ncr Seni 10 400 COmmunlty, Health ond Social Services Agencies

PRIMARY AUTHOR - SELECT COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT FLANS AND REPORTS

(To view the most recent, please visit fitip fhvivie, nanchesiernh gav/Dcooriacnig/tealihy/ Public- Health- Date)

 City of Manchester Health Depanment “Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy”, 2014

*  City of Manchester Hedlth Deponmem, “City of Manchesier Blueprini for Violence Prevention”, 2011

*  Healthy Manchester Leadership Council Report, “Believe in o Heulihy Community: Grcalcr Monchesier Communl.ry Needs
Assessment”, 2009

*  Manchester Sunmnable Access ijcct Repon, “Mancm:er s Health Care Safety Nei - fntact But Endongered: .
A Call 1o Action™, 7008

4 Seniors Count initistive, “Aging in the City of Manchesier: Prof le of Senior Health and Well- chg 2006

*  City of Manchesier Healih Depanumeny, “Public.Health Report Cards ™, 2005



Anna J. Thomas Page Three (continued)

PRIMARY AUTHOR - SELECT COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLANS AND REPORTS (conltinued)
= City of Manchester Health Depaniment, "Mealth Duparmu Among Maternal and Child Health Populations
) in the City of Manchesier Doto Report”, 2000
*  Healthy Manchester Leadenship Council chort “The Oral Health Siatus of the City oj Maonchester, Action Speaks
. Louder Thon Word: ", 1999
*  Healthy Manchesicr Leadership Council Repont, “Taking o Tough Look o1 Adolescent Pregnoncy Prev:uuo.u
in the Ciry of Manchesier ™. 1998
*  United Way Compass Steering Commintee, “Community Needs Amnmm of Greater Manchester Data Repant ™, 1997
s City of Manchester Health Department, “Public Meolth Report Cords ™ Recognized in the National Directory
of Camimunity Hea!th Repon Cards, UCLA Ceater for Children, Families & Communities, 1996

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE .
', JENNY CRAIG INTERNATIONAL Del Mar, CA 1989-19%4
Corpornte Opéntionul Systerns Trainer . 1191 - 107594 '
Traveled Inierationally 1o Conduct Troining Seminar for $00 Corporte Owned and Frunchisee Centers
Sold ond Provided Operntional Systems and Services 1 Franchisee Centers in U.S., Puerto Rico, Canada and Mexico
- Ingluding tnstaltation, Setp, Training. Spanish Langusge Software, Implementstion and Suppon
Developed Training Menuals, Seminar Handouu, Guides ond Outlines
Audited Individus! Ceniers Ov!:mil Management Performance and Adherence Lo lnformauon Sysiem Procedures

Regioml Assistant, Greater Eoston Market T 0%rBY - 118
Opened the First 24 Weight Management Centers in the Northeast
Provided Opernuona! and Logisticol Support including the Miring and Trnining’ ol’ New Emgloyees
Acquired, Summarized and Analyzed Performance Dala from Centers
Provided Corporate Office with Weekly Marketing Analysis

COLD'S GYM AND FITNESS Dover, NH : 19081989

Director of Aerobics and Fitness lastructor .
Counseled Members on Sell-Improvement Motivation in Nurrition, Fitness and Cordiovascular Programs

MILITARY SERVICE o
U.S. ARMY MEDICAL SERVICE CORPS, Commissioned Officer, Msjor, Honorable Discharge . 1989-2008

New Hampshire Army National Guard VA Hospitsl, Manchester, NH  ° 1997-2005
Responsible for Operstionally Supponing the Medicol and Oental Readiness of Nearly 1200 NHARNG Soldiens
Developed end Secuted Funding for the Healthy NHARNG 2010 Weliness Initistive Designed 10 Improve Soldier Medicol
u.nd Deata! Readiness with o Specinl Emphasis on Individusis with Elevated Risk Factors for Poor Heahh ‘Outcomes
Presented on the Heshih Swtus of the NHARNG o1 the New England Staie Surgeons’ Conference and the -
New Hampshire Senior NCO and Commanders’ Conlerences
! Served in the New Hompshire Army National Guard Counter Drug Task Foree

Massochusttts Army Reserve Fart Devens, Devens, MA ; 1989-1997
Recipient of the U.S. Army Commendation Medal Awarded for Heroism, Meritorious Achnevemem ‘and Service
Direcied 50 - 130 Troops, Troining and Discipline Including Tcam Platooh ond Detachment Leadership
. Developed Mm:vpuonal Skills ta Inspire Troops with High Fatigue Levels Under Siress{ul Conditrons
Served in Field Hospital and tnfantry Training Banation Enavironments

MILITARY TRAINING

AMEDD Officer Advanced Course’ Academy of Health Scientes, Fort Sam Houston, TX 1996
Preventive Medicine ' '
Combal Health Services Planning and F.mmnuon
Nucleor, Biological and Chemital Threat '

Obscrver / Controller Qualificetion 18th Division, 310" Infaniry Reglment, MA . 19935
AMEDD Officer Basit Courst ) Academy of Heslth Sciences, Fort Sam Housten, TX : 19%0

Army Reserve Officers Training Course - . University of New Hampahire, Durham, NH 1989
Distinguished Military Groduate , .
Top 20% of 9,000 Natianally

Direcicd 60 Cadets Training and Discipline
Advanced Camp Truining Fort Brogg, NC . 1988
Voluntary Officer Leadenship Program IOIh Mountsin Division {Light Infentry), Fort Drum NY 1988



Philip J. Alexakos, MPH, REHS \
Manchester Health Department
' 1528 Eim Street
Maeanchester, NH 0310t
628-6003 1307 (W)
471-0334 (H)

palexako{@manchesternh.gov

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science Degree, May 1994
Bates College, Lewiston, Miinc
Major: Biology

30GPA

Mas(er of Public Health, May 2004 -
University of New Hampshire

Public Health Ecology Concentration
393GPA

. EXPERIENCE

2-19'to Present  Chief Operating Officer -Manchester Health Departmeat
Oversee the Infectious Disease and Environmental Health and Emergency Preparedness
Branches at the Manchester Health Depgriment (Health Protection Section). Serves as the
Deputy Health Officer in maners of law and enforcement. Responsible for the day- lo-day
togistic and operational needs of the Department and facuhly Serves as a liaison 1o

‘ clccted officials and other partners m the mater of legislative policy development.

5-07 to 219 Public ch!th Preparedness Administrator
(Chief of Environmental Health and Emergency Preparcdness)
Manchester Health Department, Manchester, NH

Oversee all aspects of the environmental health program as noted below. Responsible for
the completion of tasks as required by the public health preparedness grants received by

. the Department. Serve as the Director of the Greater Manchesier Medical Reserve Corps.
Serves as the Chair of the Regiona! Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinating
Committee. Functions as the environmental health and preparedness liaison 10 ell
municipalitiés and public health partners in the Greater Manchester Public Health
Region. Plans and organizes local and.regional preparedness exercises lo meet or exceed



-

Federal, State and Local requirements. Teaches classes and'providcs‘trainings throughout
the State on a variety of public health and preparedness lopics. Serves on several '
preparedness and environmental health workgroups as requested.

8/10-present Adjunct Faculty Member :
University of New Hampsbire, Schoo) of Health Management
and Policy, Master of Public Health Program

. Teachess gmduate jevel course on environmental health, integrating broad global
concepts and local application of interventions and strategies. The course is designed to
require critical thinking and analysis of the effects of environmental health issues on all
affected stakeholders. Serves as a Faculty Advisor for Field Study and Capstone Studcn\s
and Student groups :

12/01 to 5/07 Senior Public Health Specialist and Supervisor of
S Environmentat Health
*Manchester Health Depanmcnt Manchester, NH

Immediale supervisot of the cnvuromn:mal hcallh division. Performed all tasks undcr the
senior environmental health specialist job description. Provided assistance to alt staff in
the division as well as peers across the Public Health Preparedness catchment area.

Served as an execulive board member of food safety and lead poisoning prevcnnon
coalitions. Evaluated employees for performance and departmental objectives and
outcomes. Taught classes in core functions of public health and cnwronmcntal health for
lhc Institute for Local Public Health Practice.

1107 to 1109 ' Adjunct Faculty Member - - :
Southern New Hampsbire Umvemry. School.of Hosp:tnhty.
Tourism and Culinary"Management.

Taught an undergraduate class on Sanitation, Safety and Security as it rclatcs to food
service, hospnalny and hotel operations. This class incorporated two separate curricula,

" The firsl, using the National Reslaurant Association’s ServSale text and Instructor
résources fo prepare students for the centification exam as & measurement of competency.
The second using the American Hotel and Lodging Assocuat:on s Security and Loss
Prevention Management texi with an optional ccmﬁcahon exam 10 demonstrate
competencies beyond the final exam.

12/97- 12/01 Senior Environmental Health Specialist
' " Manchester Heslth Department, Manchester, NH



Mentored environmental health specialists. Performed duties as noted in environmental

~ healih specialist description below. In addition, performed subsurface sewape disposal
systems inspections and soil analyses. Provided lead paisoning prevention education for
property owners and tenants. Lead investigations of foodbome illnesses or other projects”
as ass:gncd by the Chief of the ansnon

12/94- 12/87 Environmental Heolth Speciatist
Maochester Health Department. Manchester, NH

Performed duties related to a comprehcnswc envisonmenial health program, mcludmg

but not limitéd to: inspection of food service establishments, inspection of institutional

. mspccuous swimming pool inspections, plan review, investigation of public health
"-nuisance complaints. Hosted, produced and ediied “Our Public Health”, a monthly,

Manchester cable access program addressing i important topics in public health; rcachmg a.

potential eudience of 80 000 pcop!e

8/94-12/94 . Chemistry Lab Instructor
S Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH

~ Responsible for the se1-up and instruction of chemistry laboratory sessions in Gcncral
Chemnstry for science majors. Lectured for the Professor in her absence. Tutored students
in Biology and Chemistry.

PROFESSIONAL OUALlFICATIONS .
Registered Environmental Health Specialist, NEHA, Ccmﬁcate Number: 90000351

* Licensed Sub-Surface Sewage Disposal Systems Designer, Sate ofNH Permit
‘Number: 1385

. *. State of NH Depanment of En wronmcntal Services Sub-Surface Sewage Dlsposal
System, Inspector -

* ServSafe Instructor/Proctor, Nauonal Restaurant Association, Ccmf’catc Number:
12007165

¢ Licensed Lead Sampling. chhmcmn EPA Cemﬁca:c LST-114, 2001

* Certified Pool Operator, 2003

* Cenified HAPSITE Technician, 2003

PROF SSIONAL ORCA 1IZATIONS and COMMITTEES
Member, National Environmental Health Association (NEHA), 2001- prcscnl
*  Government Access Producer, Manchester Community Television, 1995- present .
* Board Member, New Hampshire Indoor Air Quality Association- Manchester Chapter
2009-Present .



«  Govemor Appointee on the Council on the Relationship Between the Environment

~ and Public Health, 2006-2010 {sunsct)

s Govemor Appointee on the Health and Human'Services Ovcmghl Subcommittee-
Food Services Performance Audit (2016-sunset) :

Director, Grealer Manchester Medical Rescrvc Corps, August. 2008. -present

Bed Bug Action Committee, 2009-present’

Public Health Nuisance Workgroup, 2014 .

Shelter Surveillance Committee, 2014- -present

Shelter Food and Hydration Commitiee, 2014-present

* Granite State Health Care Coalition, Leadership, 2017-present

"CONTINUING EDUCATION
Foodborne Disease and Control, CDC, 1995
Hazard Analysis of Critical Control Points, FDA, 1993
Warrington Microlead | X-ray Fluorescence Analyzer Operation, l99$
{ntroduction to Soil Science, University of NH, 1996
Orientation to Indoor Air Quality, Harvard School of Public Health, 1996
Prnciples of Epidemiology, CDC, 1996 .
Investigation of an Qutbreak of Pharyngitis, CDC, 1997
Epidemiology in Action, CDC/Efory University, Atlanta, GA, 1997
Communicable Discase Control, COC, 1997 '
Food Microbiological Control, FDA,.1998 -
" Investigating Foodbome lilness, FDA, 1999
‘Iniermediate Methods in Epldemuology, CDC/Emory University, Ailanm GA, 2000
Enviconmental Health Sciences, CDC, 2000
National Fire Academy, Emergency Response to Terrorism: Basac Concepts, 2001
HAPSITE certification, December 2003
Level A Hazmat trained, 2003
_ Centified Pool Operator Class 2003 :
Applied Communicable D:seasc Investigation, Control and Microbialogy, 2004
. NIMS Training and Certification, 2006
Avian Influenza Rapid Response, CDC, CSTE, 2007
Public Safety WMD Response — Sampling Techniques
and Gmd:lmes (PER-222), LSU, 2007
Incident Command Trammgs {1S-100a, 15-120, lS 200a, IS 700, iS- ]00 MGT-313, IS-
860a, 1S-546a) .
HSEEP Evaluator, 2008
Psychologlca! First Aid, 2008
Disaster. Epidemiology (CASPER and ACE) Apnl 21 23 2014
CDC SNS Mobil Prep Course, Oclober 2014

COMMUNITV ACTILVITIES
« Referee, United States Soccer Federation (1988- 2002, 2018)

= Referee, National Intercollegiate Soccer Officials Assocua_uon (1999- 2004)
]



’

» Referee, National Federation of High Schools (soccer) (1994-present)
= Volunteer Soccer Coach, Town of Bedford, Global Premier Soccer and Bedford

Athletic Club, NH (2007-prescnt)

Conversant in Spanish
References available ﬁgon request -



Objective:

Education:

-Gabriela Walder
) - 1528 Eim Street '
Manchester, NH 03101

To find a Business Services Officer position with 8 progressive, innovative organizetion
that will utilize the skills my educational and work experiences have provided me.

_State of NH Centified Public Management Program - Completed 2009 -

. State of NH Certified Public Supervisor Program ~ Completed 2004

Southem' New Hampshire University - Gradualed May 2001
Master of Science in Accounting
Undertook and completed all coursework while employed full time

Southern New Hampshire University — Graduated May 1993
Bachelors in Business Administration — Major in Human Resources
Undértook and completed all coursework while employed full tume

Manchester Central High School - Graduated June 1987
Excelled in advanced courses

11104 to Present City of Mar;chester Health DepUBusmess Svcs Ofﬁcer

7198 to 11/04

11197 to 7/98

Administer-& manage fiscal operations for Heallh Dept

Advise dept head & supervisory personnel on.fiscal matters

Maintain and reconciles over 20 State and federa!ly funded grants

Assist in the preparation of annual budget

Provide Human Resource support for all new hires and current employees
Process Accounts payable, payroll, & accounts receivables

Monitor & review general ledger, accounts receivable, payroll purchasmg

[ 3 [ 3 * » »

_ accounts payable, cash flow, budget, and other related reports as needed

* Perform other directly related duties consistent the classification

City of Manchester HR/Compensation Mgr
Piocess payroll for the City of Manchester
Prepare reports in Cognos for departments as needed
Prepare annual budgets for salary and benefits for entnre City’
Prepare 941 and State Unemployment Rpt on quarterly basrs
Analyze and reconcite salary and benefit accounts
Assisted in financial software conversion for enhre C:ry
Supervise three employees
Extenswe knowledge of Federat & State labor Iaws

" Manchester School District "~ Account Clerk
Processed payables for School department
Prepared purchase orders as required by depariments
Anaiyzed and reconciled various accounts
Prepared financial queries and reports as requesled by Admmustrator

Fs



4/97 to 11/97

11/95 to 4197

4/94 to 14/95

~ 8/90 to 4/94

3/89 to 8/90

5/88 to 3/89

Tacnnical
Skilis:

Gabriela Walder
1528 Elm Street
Manchester, NH 03101

J
Digital Eq uipn\ent Corporation CIP Accountant

‘Maintained C!P balances and ¢apitalized fixed assets

Responsible for month end interplant processing and reconciliations

_ Processed journal entries for CIP - - .. -

Processed paperwork fof assel transfers and wnte offs

Digital Equipment Corporann_ - Lead Accountant
Responsible for processing invoices for US and Canada :
Resolved problems/issues with vendors and buyers

Reconciled several ledger accounts :

Prepared various monthly reports for management

Moore Business Forms - Cost-Accountant
Assisted in preparation of quarterly and annua! budgets

_Prepared normal hour raes, job costs, and accounting cost reporls

Assisted with weekiy payroll processing
Worked with monthly financial statements
Performed other dulres as reguested by Accountant and Controller

Moore Business Forms ‘ Sennor Accountant
Reconciled several ledger acc0ums and worked with Financial Stalements

. Approved the paymenl of invoices’

Controlled capilal expenses and maintained fixed assel files
Assisted with payroll and provided comp!ete coverage when needed

Moore Buslness Forms . _ Accounts Payable Clerk
Processed invoices for payment and resolved problems as needed
Verified information on invoices and matched 1o pentaining orders
Maintained vendor files

Moore Business Forms . Purchasing Clerk
Contacted vendors regarding past due.orders '
Responsible for special order materials
Assisted the Purchasing Agent and the Accounts Payab!e Clerk

Proficient in MicrosoR Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Cognos, HTE, AS-400 Query, can

- type over 65 w.p.m., fluenl in writing and speaking Spanish.



SARAH G. MORRIS

EDUCATION
University of New England » ) . Groduated 2013
Masier of Public Heolth ' . . GPA: )6y
Univarsity o! Malne Groduated 2007

bdnr of Sciedice in Knmrala_p and Pfgmal Edmanan Conm'nrmhon in Mealth Fitness and Sports Medicine

WORK EXPERIENCE

Monchester Heatth Department - Monchestor, NH T ‘ 2014 - Praseni
Public Health Specialist jor Emerpengy Pnp:rrrdam '

+Conduc! plan rawaws ond revisions 10 aniure roqurernen!s ore mel ol the Pubhc Heollh
Emergency Preporadness work plan

+Paricipate in the design, implemaniglion, and evaluotion of emefgency preporadnen
exarcises .

+Serve 03 1ha Regiona! Public Heoﬂh Hohwork Coordinotor

+Sarve 03 the GroolerManchesler Modical Reserve Cops Coordinolor

-Member of the incident Responte Teom/MACE Siolf in ihe avent of on emergency
Environmenta! Healtb Specalist- : - . -

. Peﬁorm cornp!ehenwe inspeclions of lood service esloblnhmenll

-lnspecl educolional instilulion Pocibties

+Conducl aquatic focility inspeclions

+Complale plon rgviews 10 ensure heolih code requirements org met lor new lood semco
esioblishmenty H

sInvestigole pubbc health nuisance compilolnls

*Assist in the devetopmen! ol educalionol oulteach regording food sofeiy ond mnmcl lood
salety seminars lor large and smal audiences

«Collect water yampies from the Cily of Monchester's noluro! bothing oreos

+Porticipale in the healih depanmanis arbovirol surveiionce program by ossisling with the
an!ropmenl ond collaclion of mosquilos from vudous sites throughoul the City of Monchester

Concord Mospllal - Concord, NH ' 2010 - 2014
" Paticat Core Coordinator ] ’
' +Prmory poinl of confoct for polients
-Monage schadule of 24 Physical Therapisis. Physical !'herop{sf Assislonis, ond Occupchonoi

Theropisty ) \
«Answer lalephone calls ond delemine the oppropricte course ol aclion for each coll
«Mointain elecironic medicol reconds ' v
< Assisl wilh edifing documenis for polien! educohon and ensuring lhay ore ot Ihe
- oppropdote Klerocy level for Ihe generol pubtc
Maintoin o doily report on re_!ened polients who have nol yet schaduled on appoiniment

Prepare charge reviow report [or monogemenl daily



' [ A . . . *a .
2 . ¢
“Rebob Aide I - Outpaticnt '
+ Assist theropists with basic polient raotments
«Communicate wilth auiside deportments
«Partorm housekeeping and support flunclions
=MonoQe supply invenlonas and ordering
- o Exervise .Sptriah'ﬂ ~ Cordiac and Pulmenary Rebobilitation Departmini
*Conduc! and supenise Cardioc ond Pulmonory Maintenance ExefCrsa Ptogrorn closes
+Provide group and individual exercie education
sCompiote Corgioc Rehabiflalion Progrom evaluolions

YMCA of Greater Manchester - Gomlown NH ) 2010 -2011
Amﬂul Swim Coach )
«Provide o struclured workou! plon tor each praclice sessson wilh emphotis on siroke
lechnique ond enhancemen)
sImplemenl workou! plon by providing exaomples of proper lecrwuque descriptions of gy
10 be'performed, ong leedbock

Frederick's Pashios - Amhers), NH ond Bedlord, NH - 2008 =2010
_ Assistant M angger - Bedford Location .
-Dacorgote coxes 1o meel cuslomear and compony spec-ﬁcohom
«work under strict lime canstroinis lo meel customer pick up schedutes

‘ :Responsible for closing Ihe stora of ihe end of the day; inchuding emplying cash register
- ond-taxing invenlary :

© INTERNSHIP/VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

The Leaming Dlsablities Assoclalion of Maine . 2013
. Censultant -

-Reseorch chemicols deemed o high concem and davelop willlan fBPO"S on those
chemicals 10 be wsed lor consumer educolion and kobbying elfor;

«Colloborale wilh leom members 10 enswre up-lo-dote ond occurale informotion

The Envizonmentol Heatth Strategy Conte: - Poriand, ME 2013

Intern, Coalition and Grassroots Advocasy '
+Prodlize chemicols of high concern under the Kid Sale Products Aci
«Creole consumer lips and {ocl sheals [or 0 communily oulreoch progrom

-Schedule ond paricipole in communily outraoch progroms lor EHSC using consumer lips
ond ofher educolion matenal

Forlern Maine Medical Center - Brewer, ME xX007
latern, Community Wellaess Service . ! :
*Davelop mokaling ond soles Iechniiwes lor promoting weliness progroms

«Providie orvsile services lo employers of lorge ond smob compaonias: ossess employee
hectih Irvough Hedlih Risk Appraisal screenngs

sWork with clients in individua! and group sellings
«Paricipate in communily heallh screening evens



Bangor Chambet of Commerce - Bangor, ME . 2007
Intern, Bangor Region Wellness Counail
«Assisl in Ihe development and implemenlotion of progroms lo increose membersmp in ine
waiiness Council . .
+Help maintoin 1he Council’'s websile ond working dalobases

«Mee! wilh coporole leaden to inlroduce employee wellness ptograr'ns ond hatp
incomarale thase proQioms into their Dusiness

TRAININGS/CERTIFICATIONS

ICS 100 - Introduciion to incidenl Commond Syslem

IS 7000 - Notional incicent Monagemeant System {NIMS}

ICS 200 - ICS tor Single Resources and Initiol Aclion Incigen!

15 1200 - An Introduction 10 Exercises

15 130 - Exercise Evoluation and Improvement Ponning
"Li44 - Homelond Secusily Exercise ond Evaluotion Progrom (HSEEP)

ICS 300 - Inlermediole ICS for Expanding tncidenis

HAIWOPER Awareness Troining

SarvSole Cedified

Certified Pool Operator

- GROUPS/ACTIVITIES/AWARDS RECEIVED-

Member 6! lhﬁ Nolionol Environmenicl Haalih Associotion
University of Mcing $wimming ond Diving Teom
»Fow yeor varkily leom‘member;
sRecipient of Ihe Chondler Comebock Award. 2005
«Recipiani of tha Senior Service Aword, 2007
Athlatic Trolning Studeni Organitotion (Univenity ol Mome)
Bconze Medal Scholar athlete Award Recipient [Unrveﬂiw or Mom}



NICOLE T. LOSIER, MSN, RN

EDUCATION:

Master of Scieace in Nursing : 2007
University of New. Hampshire ' : Durham, NH
Sigma Theta Tau International Honor Society of Nursing ' .

Bachelor of Science in Behaviora) Neuroscieace, Mmor in Phnlosophy ' 1996
Northeastern University . Boston, MA'

Magna Cum Laude » Quistandirig Co-op Achicvement Award « Amelia Pcabody Scholar  Carl S. Ell
Scholar ¢ Dean's List « Honors Program

NURSING EXPERIE .
Public Health Nurse Supervisor March 2014 = Present
City of Manchester Manchester, NH
~ Supervise Community Health staff including Certified Commumty Health Nurscs, Community Health
Nurses, Public Health Specialist, Registered Dental Hygenist and Dental Assistant o Plan; direct and
evaluate community health programs  Compile monthly, quarterly, semi-annual and annual reports for
_ community health programs » Develop and prepare budget and grant requests

- .Commuonity Health Nurse _ : July 2013 - March 2014

City of Manchester . - : - ’ . Manchester, NH
Conduct casc investigalions “for reported communicable disease cases & Provide cese management for
high-risk latent Tuberculosis infections and.active Tuberculosis cascs » Provide clinical services:
including: child and adult immunizations, STD/RIV counseling & testing, Mantoux skin lcsung ¢ Point .
person for the Tuberculosis program in Manchester

Schoo! Nurse 11 : August 201 | - June 2013
City of Manchester - ~ Manchester, NH
Promote and maintain the health of schoo) children » Obtain student hcallh histories and maintain
cumulative health records » Administer medication o students as prescnbcd Develop emergency care
_ plans and medical alen lisis and review with appropnalc personnel o Provide first aid » Perform health

_ screenings and assessments o Develop healih portion of Individual Education Plans » Provide individua)
and group health education to students and s1aff » Collect and maintain daia.on schoo| health issues o .
Establish and maintain working relationships with saff, school officials, studems and parents

Publi¢ Health Nurse 1} o Novcmber 2007 - August 2011

City of Nashua : ’ ; © Nashua, NH

Provide clinical services including: child and adult immunizations, STD/HIV comschng & testing,

Mantoux skin testing, blood lead screening o Conduct case investigations for reported communu:ublc

- disease cases ¢ Provide case management for high-risk latent Tuberculosis infections.and aclive
Tuberculosis ceses » Manage and coordinate the Tuberculosis program in Nashua {2008-2010) including
producing monthly, semi-annual and annual reports ¢ Review client healthcare records far quality
assurance purposes ¢ Manage and coordinate the Communiceble Disease program in Nashua (2009-
2011) including producing monthly reports « Participate in the planning and exercise of emergency
prepasedness activities including written plans, trainings and drilis e Develop educational materials ¢
Provide education regarding healthcare topics to individual clients, ‘area agencies and community. groups '
¢ Serve as a preceptor for undergraduate nursing students # Completed ICS 100, 200, 300, 700 & 800
training ¢ Completed the Local Public Health Institute Series of Public Health Courses (Manchester

" Health Department) :



Nicole T. (Boucher) Lasier oL : ?

Clinical Nurse 1, Fuller Unit . January - September 2007
Elliot Hospital Manchester, NH

.Provide safe and effective nursing careing medical surgical environment » Provide a therapeutic and
trusting environment for patient care-s Perform comprehensive assessments, document findings,
develop, implement arid evaluate nursing care plans « Effectively utilize the EPIC electranic medical
record system o Familiar with catheters, nasogastric tubes, chest tubes, wound-vac dressings and ostomy
appliances

STUDENT NURSING EXPERIENCE: :
Student Nurse, Fuller Unit (Medical/Surgical) - October — December 2006

. Elliot Hospital . . Manchester, NH
:Sl'udcnl Nurse, Pediarric Unit = ‘ ‘ August — October 2006

. ‘Lawrence General Hospital . ’ " Lewrence, MA
Student Nurse, Marernity Unit _ - : Au§u5| — October 2006
Wentworth-Douglass Hospital . Dover, NH
-Sludenl Nurse o . . .. May - juty 2006
Concord Regional Visiting Nurses Association Concord, NH

* Student Nurse, The Pavilion / Behavioral Health Unit May - July 2006
Porismouth Regional Hospital Portsmouth, NH
Student Nurse, Murphy Unit (Medical/Surgical) - January - Méy 2086

Catholic Medical Center Manchc;lcr, NH

'RESEARCH EXPERIENCE . -
Research Associate : i 2002 - 2005

" Curis, Inc., Neuroscience ) : _ Cambridge, MA .

Scmor Research Assistant, Dr. James Stellar's Behavioral Neuroscience Laborarory 2001 = 2002

Northeastern University, Depar!menr of Psychology . - Boston,MA
| Craduate Student, Dr. Peter Shizgal's Behavioural Neurobiology Laboratory 1997 - 2001
Concordia University, Department of Psychology Montreal, Quebec
Laboratory Technician, Dr. Barbara Waszczak's Research Laboratory : 1997
Northeastern University, Department of Pharmaceutical Sciences _ Boston, MA
Laboratory Technician, Dr. Rolph Loring's Research Laboratory ‘ K 1996 - 1997
Northeastern University, Department of Pharmoceutical Sciences . Boston, MA
Research Assistant, Dr. James Steliar s Behavioral Neuroscience Laboratory ' 1992 - 1996

Northeastern University, Department of Psychology Boston, MA



Nicode T, (Ooucher) Losier

PRESENTATIONS AND PQBLICATIONS _
Losier, N T. (2007). Lead screening in Nashua, NH. Capsione Project.

Boucher, N.T., Bless, E., Brcbcck D., Albers, D.S., Guy, K., Rubin, L.L., & Dellovade, T.L. (2004)
Treatment with hedgehog agonist reduces apomorphine - mduccd rotations in 6-OHDA lesioned
rats. 347 Annual Meeling of the Society for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA, October, 2004.

Dellovade, T.L., Bless, E., Brebeck, D., Albers, D.S., Allcndocrfer, K.L, Guy, K,, Bouthcr, NT., &
Rubin, L.L. (2004). Treatment with hedgehog agonist decreases infarci volume in rat model of
stroke. 34" Annual Meeling of the Socicty for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA, October, 2004.

Dellovade, TL Bless E, Albers, D.S., Brebeck, D., Guy, X., Boucher, N., Qian, C., Munger, W.,
Dudek, H. md Rubin, L.L. {(2003). Efficacy of Small-Molecule Hcdgchog Agonists in Modcls of
EXCIIOIOXlCIly 33" Annual Mcctmg of the Society for Neuroscwnce New Orlcans LA November.
2003.

Waszczak, B.L., Martin, L., Boucher, N.. Zahr, N., Sikes, R.W., and Stellar, J.R. Electrophysiological
and behavioral output of the rat basal ganglia aﬁcr intrasmiatal infusion of d-amphetamine: Jack of -
. support for thc basal ganglia model. Brain Rcscarch 920 (2001): 170-182.

Marlm LP., Boucher, N.T., Finlay, H., Stellar, J.R., and Waszcza.k B:L. (1997). Correlation ol'
Elcclrophys:ologtcal end Behaworal Quitput of the Rat Basal Genglie afier Infusion of Dopamine
(DAY Agonisis: A New Approach, New Data. 27 Annual Meeting of the Sociery for Neuroscience,
New Orleans, LA, October 1997.

’ Bouchcr, N. (1996). E!chts of Substantia Innominata Lesions on Medial Forcbram Bundle Self-
Stimulation Rcward Honors Thesis.

~ Steflar, J.R,, Johnson P, Hall, F.S., Boucher, N., & Tehraney, P. (1995). [psilateral Veniral
' Tcgmemal Area EXCHOIOXIC L,cswns Do Not Reliably Disrupt Lateral Hypothalamic Seif-
Stimulation Reward. 25® Annual Meeting of the Socu:ly for Neurosciénce, San Diego, CA,
Nowcmber 1995.

Stellar, J.R., Jachn, L., & Boucher, N. (1993}, Multiple elccuddc arrays, HZ-1 trade-ofTs, and MFB
reward anatomy in rats. 23® Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, Washington, DC,
November 1993,



CONTRACTOR NAME
Key Personnel
Neme ob Titte Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
. this Contract | this Contract
Anne Thomas Public Health Director $136,714 0 $0.00
Philip Alexnkos Public Health Administrator | 3109974 15 516,496
Gabricls Walder - Business Services Officer -$100,762 0 $0.00
Sarah Morris Public Health Specinlist |1 $32,486 100 $32,486
Nicole Losier Public Heslth Nufse $£81,265 50 $41,632.50

Supervisor
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Roglonal Publlc Health Notwork Servlces T

Stato of New Hampshlre _
Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Amendmont #3 to the Reglonal Public Health Network Services

This 3® Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #3") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter refermed o as the "State” or "Department”) and County of Cheshire, (hereinafter
referred to as “the Contractor”), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 12 Court St., Keene, NH 03431

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) hpprovad by the Governcr and Executive Councll

on June 19, 2019, (tem #78E), as amended on February §, 2020, {(item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020 -

 (tem # 47) the Contractor agresd to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
“specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Gentract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and. approval from the Governor and Executive Councll; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify '

the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

. NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and condltions contained
in the Contract and set forth.herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$664,792.

2. Add Exhibit A-1 Additionatl Scope of Services COVID-19 Response, which Is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein,

3. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2. Program Funding,
Subsection 2.2 to read: i

2.2 The Contractor may be reimbursed for allowable costs dating back to January 20, 2020 for the
provision of services specified in Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID-19 Response.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding by deleting It in Its entirety and replacing with Exhiblt B-1,
Prograrn Funding, Amendment #3.

/

County of Cheshire Amendment #3 - Contractor tnftigls %Z
§5.2016-DPHS-26-REGION-03-A03 Pageiofd - Dats 61102020
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Ameridment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be eflective upon the Govemor's approval issued
under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

P J2fas.0

Date ' /

6/10/2020
Date

County of Cheshire
§5-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-03-A03

State of New Hampshire:
De'partmer_tt of Health and

County of Cheshire _ :

AP

Name: Charies F. Weed, Ph.D,
Title:  Chair Cheahlre County Commissicners

Amendment #3
Page20of 3




S

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substanoe, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/17/20 ‘ &ﬁbtm /OMJ,

Date Name: catherine Pinos, Attorney
Title:

| hereby oertlfy that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor appruval issued under the.
Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

© Date ' Name:
: Titte:
. |
County of Cheghire ., Amendment #3

§8-2016-DPHS-28-REGION-03-A02 Page3ofa




Additional Scop rvices - COVID-19 Res

1. Scope of Services
1.1.  Emergency Operations

1.1.1. " The Contractor shall enact emergency operations across the Regional
Public Health Network for COVID-18 efforts by:

1.1.1.1.  Activating the regicns Multi-Agency Coordination Entity (MACE)
. at a level appropriate to meet the needs of_ the response.

1.1.1.2.  Staffing the MACE with the numbers and skills necessary to
- support the response and ensure worker safety.

1.1.1.3.  Assessing the region’s public health and healthcare system
training neads -

1.1.1.4.  Providing training designed to improve the regions pub!ic health
and healthcare system response.

1.1.1.5. Ensuring plans and regions response actions incorporate the
latest DPHS guldance and direction.

1.2. Respbndar Safety and Health

1.21." The Contractor shall ensure the health and safety of the public health ‘
" response workforce in the Regional Public Health Network Including but not
fimited to:

1.2.1.1.  Implementing staff reslliency programs, information, and referrals
to responder mental health support.

1212 Determining responder safety and health gaps and implementing
corractive actions. :

1.2.1.3. Documenting and tracking the Reglional .Public Health Network's
) personal protective equipment inventory.

1.3. |dentification of Vulnerable Populations

1.3.1. The Contractor shall Identify and lmp!ement mitigation strategies for
populations at risk for morbldity, mortality, and other adverse outcomes.

County cf Cheshire Exhiblt A1 Contracter Intllats 4%/
§5-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-03-A03 Pago10f3 oate_8/10/2020




Exhibit A-1

'1.3.2. The Contractor shall coordinate with governmental and nongovernmental
programs that can be leveraged to provide health and human services and
disseminate information to connect the public with available services.

1.4.  information Sharing and Public Information

1.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure information regarding the COVID-18 efforts are
. provided to the public, induding but not limited to:

1.4.1.1. Disseminating information, alerts, wamings, and notifications
regarding risks and self-protective measures to the public,
particularly with at-risk and vulnerable populations and public
health responders,

1.4.1.2. Monitoring local news stories and social media postings to
determine if information is accurate, identify messaging gaps, and
coordinate with DHHS to adjust communicatlons as needed.

1.4.1.3. Coordinating cdmmunlcation messages, produds. and programs
with DHHS, key partners and stakeholders to harmonize response
messaging. .

1.5.  Distribution and Use of Medical Material

1.5.1.  The Contractor shall ensure capacity for a mass vacclnation campaign once
a COVID-19 vaccine becomes avallable, including:

1.5.1.1. Maintaining abiity for vaccine-specific cold chain management.

. 1.5.1.2. Coordinating targeted and mass vaccination clinics for emergency
response.

1.5.1.3. Rapldly identifying high-tisk persans requiring vaccine,

1.5.1.4. Planning to prioritize limited medical countermeasures (MCM)
baged on gutdance from CDC and the Department.

*1.5.1.5.  Ensuring capadity for distribution of MCM and supplies.

1.6. = Surge Staffing

1.6.1. The Contractor shall activate mechanisms for surging public health
responder staff.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall recru!t;-enroll. activate, traln and deploy volunteers,
including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Medica! Reserve Corps (MRC).

1.6.2.2. . Citizens Emergency Response Teams (CERT).
County of Cheghire Exhibil A-1 Controctor (nitighs

$6-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-03-A03 Page 2002 pate_6/10/2020




Exhibit A-1

1.7.  Public Health Coordination with Healthcare Systems

1.7.1. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Granite State Healthcare Coalition,
its member agencies, and other health care organizations, emergency
management, and other relevant partners and stakeholders to assess the
publlc health and medical surge needs of the community.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall participate in the activation of Alternative Care Sites as
requested by the sponsoring hospital(s).

. 1.8. Jurlsdlctlonal Recovery

1.8.1.. By September 30, 2020, the Contractor shall conductan After Action Review
of activities conducted to date, including one (1) hotwash, and devslop an
After-Action Report /Improvement Plan, including corrective actions for
improvement, timelines for thelr Impiementation and assignment to
responsible parties, to guide future actions.

1.8. Reporting

1.8.1.  The Contractor submit the following Public Health Emergency Preparedness
“information and reports to the Department

190.1.1.
1.9.1.2.

1.9.13.
1.9.14.

1.9.16.

information about COVID-19 activities In the current quarterly
PHEP progress reports using an online system administered by
the DPHS.

Documentation for pertinent COVID-19 resbonae activities
necessary to complete the MCM Operational Readiness Review
(ORR) or self-assessment as scheduled by DHHS.

Final After Action Report/Improvement Plan for the activity
described in paragraph 1.4.1.

Final After Actlon Report(s)llrriprovemnt Plan(s) for any other
drill(s) or exercise(s) conducted.

Other information that may be required by federal and state
funders during the contract period.

1.10. Training and Technical Assistance Requirements

1.10.1. The Contractor shali attend meetings and trainings specific to COVID-19
preperedness and response convened by the Department.

County of Cheshire

$5-2018-DPHS-28-REGION-03-A03

Exhibht A-1 Contractor initisis M

Pego3ofd Dot 6/10/2020




- Bk B-1, Program Fuscing. Amersiwest 13

Vendor Marme: Courty of Cheshire
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12 Court Strect, Keene, NH 03431

www.co.cheshire.nh.us

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

|, Robert Englund, M.D., Clerk of the Commissloners, do hereby certify that | am a duly elected
Officer of the County of Cheshire. | hereby certify the following Is a true copy of a vote taken at
a meeting of the Commissloners of the County of Cheshire duly called and held on June 10,
2020 at which a quorum of the Commissioners were present and voting.

VOTED: That the Chair of the Commissioners Charles F. Weed, PhD. Is hereby authorized on
behalf of this County to enter into the Regional Public Health Network Services grant

agreement amendment #3 with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or
appropriate. N

The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effé&t :
as of the date this certificate is executed. _ '

4TS

(Clerk of the Cummissiona-;_ Robert Enghmel, M.N.)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Cheshire

The forgoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this 10th day of June, 2020 by Robert

Englynd, MD. - - : ,
/"-..d "T ] o~ '
/ %ney Bouchard, Justice of the Peace
Commission Explres: /ﬂa' ¢ & 2025
Arca Code 603

. ] - Pegelofy |
¢ County Commistionsrs 352-8215/Fex 355-3026 ¢ Registry of Dseds 152-D403/Fax 352-7678 « Finance Department 155-0154/Fax 355-3000 - 12 -
Court Street, Keene, NH 03431 + County Sheriff 352-4238/Pax 355-3020 County Altomey 352-00564/Fax 355-3012 - 12 Court Street, Keene, NH
03431 o Alternstive Sentencng/Ments) Health Court 355-0160/Fax 358-0159 . 265 Washington St, Keene N.H. + Department of Corrections 825
Mariboro Strost, Keene, 03431 - 503-1800/Fax 352-4044 » Maplewcod Nursing Home & Assisted LiVing 399-4912/Fax 399-7005  TTY Access 1-830-
735-2944 » Fadiiitias 399-7300/Fax 399-7357 ¢ Humen Resources 399-7317/399-7378 « Grims Department 355-302)/7sx 355-3000
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NH Public Risk Menogement Exchange C E RTI F I CATE 0 F COVE RAG E

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex® is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the banefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex* is entitled lo tha categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members,
However, any coverage extanded to a non-member is subject to all of the lerms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex?, including but nat limited to the final and binding resolution of all daims and coverage disputes before the
Primex* Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B {Property
Damage Liability) onty, Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E {Employee Benelit Liability) and F
{Educator's Legal Liability Clairns-Made Coverage} are excluded from Lhis provision of coverage.

The betow named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,

. however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information sat out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Ceriificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Mamber: Member Number: Company Alfording Coverage:
Cheshire County - 601 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex?
Bow Brook Place
12 Court Street :
151 Floor - Room 171 . : _ 46 Donovan Street
Keene, NH 03431 . ‘ . Concord, NH 03301-2624
) Type of Coverage fgzﬁ,zvf Dﬂ;‘; iﬁ;ﬁimﬁ, D;;O Limits - NH Statutory Limits May Apply, IF Not:
X__| General Liability (Occurronce Form) 1112020 11112021 Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000
Professional Liability (describe) . General Aggregate $ 5,000,000
Claims Fire Damage {Any one
D Made- [:] Occurrence : . fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability

Deductible  Comp and Coll: $1,000 ggcf:mggm?inglﬁ Limit
Any auto Aggregale
X Workers’ Compensation & Employers' Liahility 1112020 17112021 X [ Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000
Disease — Each Empioyss $2,000,000

Disease — Policy Limit

| Property (Special Risk includes Fira and Theft) Blanked Linit Replaéemem

Cost {unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: ] I Additional Covered Party I | Loss Payee Primex® — NH Public Risk Management Exchange
By: Wary Beth Pavcell
NH Department of Health and Human Services . . Date:  2/24/2020 __mpurcell@nhprimex.ong
129 Pleasant Street ) Please direcl inquires to:
Concord, NH 03301-3857 Primox® Claims/Coverage Services
’ 603-225-2841 phone
6023-228-3833 fax



County of Cheshire

12 Court Street, Keene, NH 03431

www.co.cheshire.nh.us

Cheshire County Commissioners List 2019-2020-

Charles “Chuck” F. Weed, PhD.

Chair of the Commissioners

12 Court Street, Keene, NH 03431

Work; 603-352-8215

cweed@co.cheshire.nh.us

_ District 2 Representing Roxbury, Keene, and Marlborough
Elected to a 4-year term January 1, 2017 to December 31,-2020

John “Jack” G. Wozmak, J.D.

Vice Chair of the Commissioners

12 Court Street, Keene, NH 03431

Work: 603-352-8215

jwozmak@co.cheshire.nh.us

District 1 Representmg Chesterjf.reld Hmsda!e, Surry, Swanzey, Walpole, Westmoreland and
Winchester

Elected to a 2-year term January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2020

Robert “Bob” J. €nglund, M.D.

Clerk of the Commissioners

12 Court Street, Keene, NH 03431

Work: 603-352-8215

renglund@co.cheshire.nh.us

District 3 Representing Alstead, Dublin, Fitzwilliam, Harrisville, Jaffrey, Marlow, Nelson,
Richmond, Rindge, Stoddard, Sullivan, Troy and Gilsum

Elected to a 4-year term January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2022
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Tricia J Zahn, MPH

Summary of Expericnce

» Worked as a Center for Discase Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Associate for the Maricopa County
Department of Public Health (MCDPH) serving four million residents
o Vector-Borne and Zoonotic Disease Team 07/2010 - 07/2011:
*  Authored the Maricopa County 2010 Rabies Report and developed their ﬁrsl rabies website with
information for the public and healthcare providers
o Office of Preparedness and Response 07/2011 —5/2012:
»  Co-planned and evaluated MCDPH’s participation in first lmprowsed Nuclear Device (IND)
statewide exercise with over eight thousand federal, state, and local players
* Worked as the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinator and Strategic National Stockpile Coordinator for
t\l}@ Greater Monadnock Public Fealth Network (GMPHN}) serving over 100,000 residents 5/2012 — 12/2015
o Partnered with many diverse sectors to plan and build resiliency in the whole community )
o Organized and coordinated regular trainings and exercises which provided response partners with the chance
to work together and build trust before an emergency .
o Built relationships throughout the region and state to help streamline various issues and projects from
substance misuse and abuse to Medicaid applications .
. Currently working as the Partner Managcr for the Center for Population Health at Cheshire Medical Center
1/2016 — present
o Engaging regional partners to implement project, programs, and policies to 1mprove population health
o Supervising the Center’s Youth Wellness Program Coordinator and all Greater Monadnock Public Health
Network Staff ‘ '

PrOfcssional Acco;nplishmcnts

Cheshire Medical Center/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene 172016 — p‘resent
Partner Manager _ 40 Hours per Week
Center for Population Health .

As the Partner Manager in the Center, | work with many dlfferent partners from worksite wellness, tobacco
cessation, and emergency preparedness.

» Supporting our regional partners to advance the health and well-being of our region by providing process
improvement, resources, and removing barriers while providing encouragement and accountability

e Oversee a budget of over a quarter million dollars
» Partner with regional groups to move forward our collective impact approach to population health change

» Lead multiple grant opportunities including our Spreading Community Accelerators through Learning and
Evaluation (SCALE) work in partnership with the Institute of Healthcare Improvement and thc Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation
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Cheshire Medical Center/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene 5/2012 - 12/2015
Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 40 Hours per Week
Greater Monadnock Public Health Network

As a Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinator I improved my communication and problem-solving
skills to be an effective leader and motivator.

e Coordinated and updated the Greater Monadnock Public Health Emergency Response Annex which serves as
an appendix for our 33 town Local Emergency Operation Plans

e Managed and oversaw the Emergency Preparedness, Public Health Advisory Councﬂ and Medical Reserve-
Corps budgets and report to our fiscal agent each month

» Co-planned and successfully executed 6 community exercises in three years

¢ Coordinated with regional healthcare and emergency planning and response partners to plan and execute
multi sector trainings and exercises

J Partnered with regional organizations such as Healthy Monadnock 2020 and Monadnock Voices for
Prevention for diverse public health projects and initiatives

~ e Co-directed the Greater Monadnock Medical Reserve Corps with over 100 members

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 7/18/10 ~ 5/2012
Public Health Associate ~ Field assignee '
Two year assignment in Maricopa County, Arizona detailed below.

Maricopa County Department of Public Health, Phoenix, AZ: 7/18/11 - 5/2012
Office of Preparedness and Response (OPR) , 40 Hours per Week
4041 N. Central Ave Suite 600 ‘

Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Project Mmmgemen.l Specialist, CDC Public Health Associate

As a field assignee and a project management specialist | was able to hone my skills in public health emergency
preparedness planmng, response, evaluation, and 1mprov<,ment

. Coordinarcd and compiled the Radiation and Nuclear Device Annex of the County’s Emergency Response
Plan (ERP): Served as MCDPH point person and subject matter expert for the public health nuclear/radiation
response :

e Co-planned, implemented, and evaluated the public health response to a simulated 10 K'T Improvised Nuclear
Device (IND) explosion in Arizona’s largest preparedness and response statewide exercise to date.

s Co-developed the Master Scenario Event List (MSEL) for over 80 participating healthcare facilities and
public health departments while co-developing the Exercise Plan (ExPlan) and the Situational Manual
(SitMan).

. Co—planned a tabletop for fifty people the day prior to the functional exercise to provide background
knowledge regarding the public health impact of an IND cxplosion.
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¢ - Coordinated with healthcare facilities to integrate healthcare response with public heaith

Maricopa County Department of Public Health, Phoenix, AZ 7/18/10 - 7/17/11
Office of Epidemiology 40 Hours per Week
4041 N. Central Ave Suite 600

Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Data Analyst, CDC Public Health Associate

As a data analyst and a CDC field assignee I further developed my analytical skills (reports, trends, intervention
recommendations, etc.) along with my communication skills (presentations, press releases, interviews, etc.). As part of the
Vector-Borne and Zoonotic Disease Team during a West Nile virus outbreak in Arizona, 1 participated in CDC/MCDPH
WNV EpiAid projects to evaluate WNV testing completeness among patients with men|ng1t|s/cncepha11t|s and to cvaluate
WNV RNA levels during 5 months after infection.

‘s Served as primary or secondary investigator for the following AZ reportable diseases:
o Primary Investigator: Aseptic Mcnmgllls Viral Encephalitis, Lyme disease
o Seccondary Investigator: West Nile virus, Malaria, Rocky Mountam spotted fever, Eastern Equine
Encephalitis, St. Louis Encephalitis
e Served as one of three people in the office that conducted rabies risk assessments and arranging post exposure
prophylaxis, which reqmrcd highly specialized training

¢ Conducted chart reviews and case phone interviews along with entering relevant information and notes into a
database

e Compiled, cleaned, and analyzed 2010 Maricopa County Rabies data, incorporated data into visual aids and
drafted supporting text for the 2010 Maricopa County Rabies Report

o Developed Microsoft PowerPoint and presentcd the 2010 Maricopa County Rabies data and findings to the Office .
of Epidemiology

* Created the first Maricopa County Rabies website including content, photographs, and other visuals

Education

-«Master of Public Health, University of New Hampshire
Manchester, New Hampshire, 2014

Bachelor of Science, Public Health, University of Tampa
Tampa, Florida, 2010

Spring Semester Abroad, Florence University of the Arts
" Florence, Italy, 2009




Trainings
(not an exhaustive list)

Dartmouth-Hitchcock’s Conat); Breakthrough Leadership Program, Leadership Monadnock 2015 - 2016, Hoffman-Haas
Fellowship Class of 2015, Emergency Support Function (ESF) #8 Public Health and Medical Services, CPR/AED, First
Aid, Disability Awareness, Psychological First Aid, Active Shooter, Autism Awareness, Cultural Diversity, Homeland
Security Exercise and Evaluation Program , Hostility Management in the Workplace and Beyond, Harvard School of
Public Health Emergency Planning for Local Public Health, Suicide Prevention and Postvention, Decontamination, Power
Air Purifying Respirator (PAPR),

_ ‘ Awards
2/2016 — Monadnock Region Trendsetter Award Recipient

7/2015 — Nominee, Cheshire Medical Center/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene President’s Service Excellence Award

4/2011 - Recognizcd for outstanding work on the new Maricopa County rabies webpage presented by the Maricopa
County Department of Public Health :

3/2009 — Recognized as being an Outstanding Public Health Graduate, Plaque presented by the University of Tampa

Certifications
February 2018 — New Hampshire aﬁd National Licensed Emergency M;;;cal Technician (NREMT)
November 2017 — Local Improvemeﬁl Advisor through .the Institute for Healthcare Improvement
August 2015 - qurn Nota‘ry Pubiiic for the State of New Hampshire
June 2013 — Hospital Incident Commz;nd System (HICS)
February 2015 — Mental Health First Aid USA, Nationz;l Council for Community Behavioral Healthcare

September 2010 — October 2011 Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
' Certified as a Tier 1l responder <
e National Incident Management System (NIMS) An Introduction, ICS-700

» Introduction to Incident Command System, ICS-100

s ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incident, 1CS-200
 National Response Framework, An Introduction, ICS-800

e Intermediate Incident Command System (ICS), MAG 300

s  Advanced Incident Command System, MAG 400

¢ Homeland Securily and Exercise Evaluation Program (HSEEP) 2012
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Publications

1.B Weber, N.P. Lindsey, A.M. Bunko Patterson, G. Briggs, T.J. Wadleigh, T.L. Sylvester, C. Levy, K.K Komatsu, J.A
Lehman, M. Fischer, J.E Staples. Completeness of West Nile virus testing among patienis with meningitis and encephalitis
during an outbreak in Arizona. United States. Epidemiology and Infection. '

Stévcn A. Baty, Katherine B. Gibney, J. Erin Staples, Andrean Bunko Patterson, Craig Levy, Jennifer Lchman, Tricia

Wadleigh, Jamie Feld, Robert Lanciotti, C. Thomas Nugent, and Marc Fischer. Evaluation for West Nile Virus (WNV)
RNA in Urine of Patients within 5 Months of WNV Infection. The Journal of Infectious Disease.

Presentations
(not an exhaustive list)

“Center for Population Health Update” Cheshire Health Foundation Annual Meeting, September 2013

“Population Health Practice: From Idea to Impact” Keene State College, HLSC 485: Health Promotion Practice,
February 2018

“Public Health — Emergency Preparedness” Keene State College, Epidemiology, April 2017

“Practice Makes Progress. Lessons Learned from a Long Term Care Facility Evacuation Exercise with Healthcare
Coalition Partners” 11" Annual NH Emergency Preparcdness Conference, June 2015

“NH Strategic National Stockpile Planning. Where are we Now?” 10 Annual NH Emergency Preparedness Conference.
June 2014 ' .

“Buasics of a Closed Point of Dispensing (POD) " 2014 NH Integrated Emergency Volunteer Training Conference. August
2014 : ’ ‘ '

“Emergency Preparedness in Long Term Care” Emergency Preparedness Seminar, New Hampshire Health Care
Association. November 2013

“Keys to Emergency Planning: New Changes to Emergency Preparedness in the Assisted Living Rules and How to Begin
Instituting a Plan with the Assistance of the Public Health Networks ™ 24™ Annual Fall convention, New Hampshire
Association of Residential Care Homes. October 2013

“Maricopa County Rabies Website and 2010 Rabies Report. " Presented 1o the Office of Epidemiology, Maricopa County
Department of Public Health, Phoenix, USA, July 2011

“Asepﬁ'c Meningitis Surveillance and Enhanced Surveillance.” Presented to the Office of Epidemiology, Maricopa
County Departinent of Public Health, Phoenix, USA, April 2011
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Olivia Watson -
Education
Bachelor of Science Degrec in Public Health, December 2018

University of Massachusetts, Amherst
Certificate: Public Policy & Administration

Professional Experience
Cheshire Medical Center, Greater Monadnoék Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, April 2019 - Present

Provide leadership for regional public health emergency planning

Facilitate cross-sector efforts to increase regional resilience

Lead development and activation of the Greater Monadnock Medical Reserve Corps (GMMRC); organize and
direct over one hundred volunteers

Representative on multiple regional planning and action groups

Plan and execute multiple regional drills and exercises; facilitate and promote regional (rainings

Maintain inventory of regional GMPHN assets; identify gaps in assets and work with funder to address needs

Departmental Assistant, January 2017 to 2019
University of Massachusetts- Office of Environmental Health & Safety and Emergency
Managemenr, Amherst, MA

Responsible for managing front desk which duties include answering phones, directing phone calls, using radlo
to communicate, and communicating through. face to face interactions with student and faculty.

During HAZWHOPER (Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response) trainings, dutics include
being alert and answering different radio calls from depanmcnts involved on campus.

Assisted in Meningitis Outbreak vaccination clinic, gaining valuable experience in the response side of
emergency planning as contributing to the setup, execution, and break down of the clinic.

Currently researching in order to aceredit the University of Massachusetts, Amherst through the Emergency
Management Accreditation Program,

Conducled research for multiple different grant proposals, including the active threat grant proposal, which
granted the universily mon¢y 10 make an active threat video.

Designed and placed various emergency posters around campus.

Certified Nursing Assistant, September 2018 10 Present
LifePath Pelham, MA

Provide high-quality patient care to an elderly woman with dementia

Preserve patient dignity by assisting resident with operations of daily living in order for her to be ablc to stay
in the comfort of her home. -
Administer medications and update log so other nursing assistants caring for her are informed

Computer Skills

Microsoft Word Excel, Windows, Powerl’omt Mac

Professional Affiliations & Certifications

Certificd Nursing Assistant

12 Completed Courses from FEMA Emergency Management Institute

Successfully completed 2017 Marine Corps Marathon

MedLife Member, University of Massachusetts Amherst

Public Health Club Member, University of Massachuseits Amherst

National Society of Leadership and Success

Orientation Leader June 2016 '

American Reads Tutor August 2015-December 2016

University of Massachuseits, Amherst Dean’s List Spring 2017, Fall 2017, Spring 2018, Fall 2018



, Cheshire Medical Center
////’ Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene

Job Description

Jos Trree: Prevention Network Coordinator DerarTMENT:  Center for Population Health
Jos Cope: FLSA:
RePORTS To: Director of Operations DATE: '
PURPOSE OF To collaborate with diverse community stakeholders to enhance the implementation of a
Posimion: comprehensive community-wide approach to reducing substance use and abuse in the Manadnock
region.
ESSENTIAL Primary accountability and results for specific essential functions of the job. List by order of importance. This list of is not exhaustwe and may’
FUNCTIONS: be supplemented or changed as necessary.
1. | Work with the communities in the Monadnock Region to build relationships and partnerships:
* Gather/receive, prepare and disseminate information to the Region;
* Encourage collaborative efforts;
e Enhance capacity within the Monadnock Region;
2. | Communicate with the groups via telephone, e-mail, face-to-face or group as necessary to meet reqwrements of
work plan requirements:; Leadership Team, Communities within the region, and state representatwes
3. | Educate, inform, and strengthen the Leadership Team .
4. | Ensure strategic planning support for Monadnock Region development and projects
5. | Ensure logistical support for Monadnock Region development and projects X
6. | Provide Technical Assistance to local communities, coalitions, school districts and stakeholders
7. | Participate in'subcommittee work and chair specific groups as needed ’
8. | Represent the Monadnock Region at Regional and State meetings
9, | Coordinate media, public relation and outreach/educational activities:
¢ Maintain Media Collaboration partnership
« Prepare and disseminate print and broadcast materials for the Monadnock Region in coordination with
the various region/tapic specific coalitions. .
¢ Coordinate events to support and strengthen the strategic plan in coordlnatlon with the various
region/topic specific coalitions.
s  Ensure coordination of Monadnock Region awareness and educatlonal opportunities in coordination with
the various region/toplc specific coalitions.
* Ensure promotion of the Monadnock Region coalition activities and achievements in coordination with
the various region/topic specific coalitions.
10. | Take minutes, coordinate mailings and maintain member and partner lists for MVP, Leadership Team and other
subcommittees as needed ~
11. | Act as liaison between GMPHN & CMC/DHK, regional partner collaborative, other statewide public health
networks and DHHS, DPHS; BDAS; attend regional and state meetings on behalf of GMPHN & CMC/DHK
12. | Professional development
* Obtain and maintain Certified Prevention Specialist
* Attend training and seminars to increase professional development and maintain a current knowledge of
best prevention practices, procedures, and methods.

Job Description Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinalor.docx . Page 1of 3



Cheshire Medical Center

// Dartmouth-Hltchcock Keene

Job Description

13. | File required reports and attend meetings as requnred by CMC/DHK, fiscal agent {Cheshire County), BDAS, DHHS-
DPHS, and other funders

14. |  Assist supervisor and department staff with diverse public health projects.

QUALIFICATIONS needad to perform at a proficient level and be fully qualified. Show minimum requirements.

1. { Minimum Education:

Bachelor's degree required from an accredited college or university with a major in
Community and/or System Development, Soc1a| Work, Public Health, Public
Administration or a related field.

2. | Minimum Experience:

Three {3} years of experience in public health systems and/or community organlzlng
Experience working on multiple priorities simultaneously.

3. | Specific Skills, Knowledge
and/or Competencies:

The preferred candidate will have strong written and'verbal communication,
organizatiénal and planning, and interpersonal skills. This person must also have the
ability to multi-task and triage and facilitate cooperation among diverse organizations.
Minimum of three years of experience in: substance abuse prevention and community
organizing. The preferred candidate will also have experience with report and budget
work, contract work, grant writing, non-profits, coalitions, service providers, and-
leadership teams. The ideal candidate will have a passion for substance abuse and be -
able to manage his or her own accountability in an independent environment.

4, | Licenses/ Certifications:

'~ Certified Prevention Specialist Certification - must be obtained within one year of

hire.

5. | Other:

‘AGE SPECIFIC COMPETENCIES If this job serves specific age categories, indicate which one(s).

[J . Neonate ] Adolescent ' D Geriatric
[ Pediatiics O Adult
PHYSICAL DEMANDS OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES/FUNCTIONS {(summarize and complete chart below):
Minimal physical demands for this position.
R Demand Ifreﬁ_tj'egcy of Actiori-| Demand’ Frequency of_"A‘c_tioh:' o e
Standing Frequent Bending Occasional . vio0 Scaler :
. e I L. Otcasional”  ''0-33%oftime
Walking Frequent T ot . o - : o . !
Demand  * Frequency.of Action ., Weight Involved Frequent: 34--66% of time |
Sitting Frequent P .. u. T Ci;nstant;" 467 100% OfAt'il;'l_'IE-.
Seeing Constant Pulling Occasional 10 lbs + under '

Job Description Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator.docx
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_, Cheshire Medical Center
//// Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene

| Job Description

Hearing Constant Pushing Occasional 10 Ibs + under v
Reaching - Occasional Lifting Occasional 10 |bs + under . o
-+ Repetitive Motion  Frequency of Action

Grasping - Frequent Carrying Occasional 10 Ibs + under o '

Fine dexterity . Occasional Gripping Occasional .10 lbs + under Single hand/Side of body Not applicable
Kneal/crouch Qccasional 7 - ‘Both hands/side; of body Not applicable

PR | Exposure - L. ffeﬁUS!"_"CYi‘ .3', - . .  Exposure’ ' i‘:i, 'F.reqﬁ?"cv .

Body fluids, blood, tissues* Not applicable Heat/Cold B : Not applicable
Radiation* Not applicable Wgt/Humid {not weather related) B Not applicable
Toxic/Caustic Fumes* Not applicable Vibration . Not applicable
Chemicals* Not applicable Work near moving mechanical parts* Not applicable
Elactrical Shock* . . Not applicable *Training required when éxposure is frequent part of the job.

Job Description Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator.docx ‘ Page 3of 3



JOHN J. LETENDRE
ST T T

SUBSTANCE MISUSE RELATED EXPERIENCE:
Cheshire Medical Center: (December 2018- Present)

Continuum of Care Facilitator: Within the framework of Monadnock Voices for Prevention, worked with providers
and agencies across the Continuum of Care for mental health and substance abuse. Main objectives are to
increase awareness of services, improve communication and help build collaboration among providers. An overall
goal is to maximize the utilization and efficiency across the continuum of prevention, intervention treatment and
aftercare. )

Granite Pathways: (August 2018-December 2018)

Recovery Specialist; Working with patients and families in order to facilitate entry into appropriate SA treatment
programs. Main goal is to provide assistance to consumers in navigating the complicated web of treatment, levels
of care, insurance and associated documentation. Additionally charged with developing refationships and
agreements with area providers to allow timely access to resources needed to facilitate entry into treatment.

Groups Recover Together: (January 2018-June 2018)

Substance Abuse Counselor: Worked as primary counselor for a caseload of 80-130 clients engaged in
medication-assisted treatment. Responsibilities included facilitation of multiple weekly groups of up to 12 clients,
initial assessments, and intakes, treatment planning, discharge planning and individual and family counseling
sessions. Worked closely with prescribing physicians on issues of medication compliance, drug screening results
and medication tapering.

Phoenix Houses of New England: (March 2011 — Jan 2018)

Counselor li/House Manager: Dublin NH: Performed one on one Substance Abuse counseling with residential
clients. Conducted various didactic and process groups such as Anger Management, Seeking Safety, Addiction
and the Brain, Meditation / Mindfulness and Men's Gender group. As House Manager, conducted monthly
inspection and worked with facilities to help ensure upkeep and general compliance with state regulations and
Certification bodies. Assisted Program Director with personnel and managerial duties as assigned.

Counselor | ~Cheshire County Drug Court Program — Keene NH: Performed one on one counseling with Drug
Court participants. Co-facilitated Intensive Outpatient Program, conducting didactic and process curriculum as
directed by program guidelines.

Case Manager— Transitional Living Program —Keene NH: Worked with clients who successfully completed the 28-
day inpatient ireatment program and assisted them as they transitioned back into the community. Provided one
on one counseling and support as clients sought employment and established a program of recovery; preparing to
leave the controlled environment. _ -
Counselor Assistant -Keene NH: Performed administrative tasks such as admissions and transportation of clients
to appointments and meetings. Monitored vital signs of detox clients and administered medication as directed in
medication orders. Performed other various duties as assigned by Program Director.

EDUCATION:
Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency (2011 Magna Cum Laude)
Bachelor of Science in Management (2006 Cum Laude)
Associate of Science in Chemistry (1996)
Keene State College, Keene, NH
Della Mu Delta, National Honor Society for Business Administration, 2006

LICENSES { CERTIFICATIONS: Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) License# 1001



QUALIFICATIONS

EpucaATion

EXPERIENCE

SKILLS

P

Maera Cramer

9 years experience working in the main office of the Compass School performing a wide variety of tasks
High levels of experience with computers and the Microsoft Office Suite
Hard working, dependable and adaprable

Bachelor of Fine Arts in Visual Communication, Magna Cum Laude - May 2009
Cazenovia College Cazenovia NY

Administrative Assistant - Compass School, Westminster VI : 2010-Present

Managed the office and interacted with parents and students while performing other secretarial duties.
Other duties include: answering phones; purchasing; data entry; student records processing;
attendance tracking; and providing support to both faculty and students.

Graphics Designer - Compass School, Westminster VT 2010-Present
Worked closely with the Development Director to unify and produce the Compass School brand.
Duties include: design and production of printed materials; print ad design and ordering of merchandisc.

Freclance Graphics Designer - Main Street Arts Summei 2011
Did design and layout of the SafeMeasures™ Facilitators Gui ing S

Lgmnm_g handbook, as well as several smaller design projects fon their PFCSCDT’\UOI‘IS

Customer Support and Web Imager - Cremation Solutions, Arlington VT 2009-2010
Responsible for providing support through both phone and e-mail to customers.
Other tasks included: photographing merchandise and maintaining'the company's website.

Quality Control - Sajen Jewelry, Putney VT 2009
Inspected, packaged and shipped jewelry

Graphics Design Intern - Cazenovia College Communications Departinent, Cazenovia NY 2008
Built projects from concept to production. Projects included mailers, t-shirt designs, and posters

Web Imager - Offerings fewelry, Putney VT Summers 2006-2007
Photographed merchandise and enhanced images for the Offerings sales website

Proficient in Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, Photoshop, InDesign, and Illustrator.
Knowledgeable in both the Windows and Mac OS, Microsoft Excel and HTML coding.
Other Notable Skills: origami, illustration, sculpture and an enjoyment of problem solving.



GRANTEE: COUNTY OF CHESHIRE
SUBRECIPIENT: CHESHIRE MEDICAL CENTER / DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK

Key Personnel

% Paid from

Amount Paid

Name Job Title Salary this Contract | from this Contract
PHAC Lead (Title: Program
Manager-Community Health)
- NOTE: Tricia will fill this $63,149
Tricia Zahn role temporarily while $30.36/hr 32% $20,208
Cheshire Medical searches
Jor a permanent replocement.
Olivia Watson PHEP Coordinator {1 FTE) $49,275 100% $49,275
. $23.69/hr g
. : . - $44.450 0 )
To be hired SMP Coordinator (1 FTE) $21.37/hr 75% $33,338
- . $22,547 0
John Letendre CoC Facilitator (.5 FTE) $21.68/he 100% $22,547
i Program Assistant (1 FTE) $36,400 o
Maera Cramer Recently filled $17.50/hr 50% $18,200

*All above positions received a cost of living adjustment to salaries effective January 1, 2020.




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

‘ State of New Hampshire
~ Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the Regional Public Health Network Services

This 3 Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
*Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the “State" or "Department”) and Granite United Way, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"}, a nonprofit, with a place of busmess at 46 South Main Street, Concord
NH 03301,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (tem #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (tem #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(ltem # 47} the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and '

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemnor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price'Limitation, to read:
T $2,229571. )

2. Add Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID-19 Response which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

3. Add Exhibit B, Method and Condltlons Precedent to Payment, Section 2. Program Funding,
- Subsection 2.2 to read:

2.2 The Contractor may be reimbursed for aIIowab!e costs dating back to January 20, 2020 for the,
provision of services specified in Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID 19 Response.

4. Modlfy Exhibit-B-1, Program Funding by deleting it in its entirety and replacmg with Exhibit B- 1
Program Funding, Amendment #3.

Granite United Way ~ Amendment #3 Contractor Initials ¢
$8-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-04-A03 Page10f3 ~ Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reglonal Public Health Network Services

All terms ar:1d conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the Govemor's approval issued
under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extendéd by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Depariment of Health and Human Services

o el Indi g

Date ' Name: Lisa-Morris- A
Title:  Diseater—  ASGor ([ 1SS tav

o Fll T

- Datd . | %%g,:e M—TUHS
| Presiert 10':0

Granite United Way Amendment #3
§5-2019-DPH5-28-REGION-04-A03 Page2of3




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/26/20 - (Cathercne Poa

Date - Name:
' Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor approval issued under the
Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:
Title:
Granite United Way Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Reglonal Public Health Network Services

Exhlbit A-1

Additional Scope of Services - COVID-19 Response.

1.. Scope of Services

1.1.  Emergency Operations

1.1.1. The Contractor shall enact emergency operations across the Regional
Public Health Network for COVID-19 efforts by: '

1.1.1.1.
1.1.1.2.
1.1.1.3.
1.1.1.4.

1.1.15.

Activating the regions Multi-Agency Coordination Entity (MACE)
at a level appropriate to meet the needs of the response.

Staffing the MACE with the numbers and skills necessary to
support the response and ensure worker safety.

Assessing the region’s public health and healthcare system
training needs.

Providing training designed to improve the regions public health
and healthcare system response.

Ensuring plans and regions response actions incorporate the
latest DPHS guidance and direction.

1.2. Responder Safety and Health

1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure the healith and safety of the public- health
response workforce in the Regtonal Public Health Network, including but not

Iimited to:

1.2.1.1.
1.2.1.2.

1.21.3..

Implementing staff resiliency programs, information, and referrals
to responder mental health support.

Determining responder safety and health gaps and |mplement|ng<
corrective actions.

Documenting and tracking the Regional Public Health Network's -
personal protective equipment inventory.

1.3.  Identification of Vulnerable Populations

1.3.1. The Contractor shall identify and implement mitigation strategies for
popuiations at risk for morbidity, mortality, and other adverse outcomes.

Granite United Way

§58-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-04-A03

Exhlbit A-1 * Contractor Initials/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services
‘ - Exhibit A-1

1.3.2. The Contractor shall coordinate with governmental and nongovernmental
programs that can be leveraged to provide health and human services and
disseminate information to connect the public with available services.

1.4.  Information Sharing and Public Information

1.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure information regarding the COVID-19 efforts are
provided to the public, including but not limited to:

1.4.1.1. Disseminating information, alerts, warnings, and notifications
: regarding risks and self-protective measures to the public,
particularly with at-risk and vulnerable populations and public

. health responders.

1.4.1.2." Monitoring local news stories and social media postings to
determine if information is accurate, identify messaging gaps, and
coordinate with DHHS to adjust communications as needed.

14.1.3, Coordinating communication messages, products. and prbgrams
with DHHS, key partners and stakeholders to harmonize response
messaging.

1.5. Distribution and Use of Medical Material

1.56.1. The Contractor shall ensure capacity for a mass vaccination campaign once
a COVID-19 vaccine becomes available, including:

1.56:1.1. Maintaining ébility for vacciné-speciﬁc cold chain management.

1.51.2. Coordinating targeted and mass vaccination clinics for emergency
response. . '

1.5.1.3. Rapidly identifying high-risk persons réquiring vaccine.

1.5.1.4. Planning to prioritize limited medical countermeasures (MCM) .

based on guidance from CDC and the Department.
1.5.1.5. Ensuring capacity for distribution of MCM and supplies.

1.8.  Surge Staffing

1.6.1. The Contractor shall activate mechanisms for surging public health
- responder staff.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall recruit, enroll, activate, train and deploy volunteers,
. including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Medical Reserve Corps (MRC). ;

1.6.2.2. Citizens Emergency Response Teams (CERT). ¢
Granite United Way ’ Exhibit A-1 Contractor Intiels X_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reglonal Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

1.7. Public Health Coordination with Healthcare Systems

1.7.1. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Granite State Healthcare Coalition,
its ‘'member agencies, and other health care organizations, emergency
management, and other relevant partners and stakeholders to assess the
-public health and medical surge needs of the community.

1.7.2. The Cantractor shall participate in the activation of Alternative Care Sites as
requested by the sponsoring hospital(s).

1.8..  Jurisdictional Recovery

1.8.1. By September 30, 2020, the Contractor shalt conduct an After Action Review
of activities conducted to date, including one (1) hotwash, and develop an
After-Action Report /Improvement Plan, .including corrective actions for
improvement, timelines for their implementation and assignment to
responsible parties, to guide future actions.

1.9. Reporting

1.9.1. The Contractor submit the following Public Health Emergency Preparedness
information and reports to the Department.

1.9.1.1. - Information about COVID-19 activities in the current quarterly
PHEP progress reports using an onllne system administered by
the DPHS.

1.9.1.2. Documentation for pertinent COVID-12 response activities
necessary to complete the MCM Operational Readiness Review
(ORR) or self-assessment as scheduled by DHHS.

1.9.1.3. Final After Action Report/Improvement Plan for the activity
described in paragraph 141, '

1.9.1.4. Final After Action Report(s)/Improvement Plan(s) for any other
drill{s) or exercise(s) conducted.

1.9.1.5. Other information that may be required by federal and state
- funders during the contract period.

1.10. Training and Technical Assistance Requirements

1.10.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and trainiﬁgs specific to 'COVI.D—19
preparedness and response convened by the Department.

Granite United Way Exhibil A-1 - Conteactor Initials i _
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M, Gardner, Scereiary of Slaﬁ: of the State of New Hampshirc, do hercby certify that GRANITE UNITED WAY is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered 1o transact business in New Hampshire on March 30, 1927. | further centify
that ail fees and documents required by the Secrétary of State's office have been reecived and is in good standing as far o3 this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 65650
Centificate Number: 0004512325

N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and csﬁsc 10 be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hompshire,
this 8th day of Mey A.D. 2019.

. Gor Lo
Williem M. Gardaer
Secretary of State




I,

1.

" lam a duly elected Board Chair

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

Heather Lavoie , do hereby certity that:

.of Granite United Way, a New

Hampshire voluntary corporation; and

The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the
Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of the corporation, duly held on October
‘8, 2015; ' ’

RESOLVED: That this corporation may enter into any and all contracts, amendments,
renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the President & CEQ is hereby authorized on behalf of this
corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all
documents, agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Patrick
Tufts is the duly elected President & CEO of the corporation.

The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force
and effect as of the __ 24th _ day of June _ , 2020,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hergunto .\S&t my namel as &)U{j @A@J\( of

- the Corporation hereto, affixed this ) day of O—UWQ; , 2020.

Ll

Signature of Elected Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
«County of -

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____day of
, 2020.
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1/3/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER. THIS'
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR MEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERYVIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
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Granite United Way Mission Statement

To improve the quality of people’s lives by bringing together the
caring power of communities.
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~ .
NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
\ PROFESSIiOoONAL ASSOCIATEOHN
/" CEerTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of March 31, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of finandal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. -

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. : -

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments,.the auditor considers internal control relevant to_the entity’s -
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
. the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Page 1
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all'material respects, the
financial position of Granite United Way as of March 31, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.5. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. )

Other Reporting Required by Government Audi ting Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15, 2019
on our consideration of Granite United Way’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of -that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in .
considering Granite United Way’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging
opportunity grants are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements..
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

. directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the -
finandial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Page 2



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

i

We have previously audited Granite United Way's March 31, 2018 financial statements, and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated July 10, 2018. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended

March 31, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Yathan Wachale ' C*-Fﬂ&

Concord, New Hampshire
August 15, 2019
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"GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2019 with comparative totals as of March 31, 2018

2019 ' ‘ 2018
ASSETS Without With
' Donoz/ Time Donor/ Time .
. Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
CURRENT ASSETS :
Cash $ -8 419,438 % 419,438 $ 687,722
Prepaid and reimbursable expenses 50,236 .- 50,236 © 36828
Investments o 272,879 193,043 465,922 ) 460,554
Accounts and rent receivable 9,982 - 9,982 14,323
Contributions and grants receivable, net
of allowance for uncollectible contributions
2019 $443,943; 2018 $481,267 . - 3,575,081 3,575,081 3,619,219
Total current assets 333,097 4,187,562 4,520,659 - 4,818,646
OTHER ASSETS
Property and equipment, net 1,248,124 - 1,248,124 1,287,863
Investments - endowment 10,750 204,426 215,176 206,405
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - 1,726,207 1,726,207 . 1,782,840
" Total other assets 1,258,674 1,930,633 3,189,507 . 3,277,108
Total assets $§ 1591971 S 6118195 $ 7710166 5 8095754
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 12,843 $ -5 12843 § 12,718
Allocations payable to partner agencies 1,483,094 - 1,483,094 1,888,376
Donor-designations payable 329,924 926,494 1,256,418 1,580,606
Accounts payable - 78,726 - 78,726 115,575 -
Accrued expenses . 160,097 - 160,097 130,522
Funds held for others - 9,055 - 9,055 - 23,795
Deferred revenue - designation feces 86,362 - 86,362 48,450
Total current liabilities _ 2,160,101 926,494 3,086,595 3,800,042
LONC—TERM DEBT, less current maturities 203,093 - 203,093 © 215,245
Total liabilities 2,363,194 926,494 3,289,688 4,015,287
COMMITMENTS (See Notes)
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT): ‘
Without donor/ time restrictions . (771,223) - (771,223} (386,051)
With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9) ’ - 5,191,701 5,191,701 4,466,518
Total net assets (deficit) T (771,223) 5,191,701 4,420,478 4,080,467

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1591971 $ 6118195 § 7710166 $ 8095754

See Notes to Financial Statements, - Page 4



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended March 31, 2019 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2018

2019 2018
Without With
Donor/ Time Donor/ Time _
Restricions  Restrictions Total Total
Support and revenues: ‘
Campaign revenue:
Total contributions pledged $ -$ 6945931 5 695931 $ 7752769
Less donor designations - (1.899,443) (1,899,443) (2,190.178)
Less provision for uncollectible pledges - (256,450) (256,490) (298,907)
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year 119,296 ] - 119,296 144,147
Net campaign revenue 119,296 4,789,998 4,909,294 5,407,831
Support:
Grant.revenue - - 1,230,089 1,230,089 1,201,326
Sponsors and other contributions - 1,040,542 1,040,542 195,629
In-kind contributions 58179 - 58,179 104,564
Total support 177,475 7,060,629 7,238,104 6,909,350
Other revenue: . :
Rental income 73,548 - 73,548 87535
Administrative fees 59,348 - 59,348 58,479
Miscellaneous income 3871 - 3,871 569
Returncd grants 69.110 - 69,110 86,667
Tolal support and revenues 383,352 7,060,629 7,443,981 7,142,600
Nel assets released from restrictions: .
For satisfaction of ime restrictions 4,250,661 {4,250,661) - -
For satisfaction of program restricions 2,036,484 {2,036,484) - -
6,670,497 773,484 7,443,981 7,142,600
Expenses: _ ‘
Program services 5,504,862 - 5,504,862 5,694,902
Support services:
Management and general 773,240 - 773,240 586,313
~ Fundraising 867,290 - B67,260 959,177
Total expenses 7,145,392 - 7,145,392 7,240,392
[ncrease (decrease) in net assels '
before non-operating achivities (474,895) 773,484 298,589 (97,792)
Non-operating activities: '
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees 2019 $12,051; 2018 $11,787 - {56,633) (56,633) 91,818
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 7,893 3,936 11,829 {5.677)
[nvestment income, net 81.830 4396 86,226 94,176
Total nen-operating activities 89,723 (¢8.301) 41,422 180,317
Net increase (decrease) in net assets {385172) 725,183 340,011 82,525
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (386,051) 4,466,518 4,080,467 3,997,942
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ (771223)$ 5191701 § 4420478 § 4080467

Sez Notes to Financial Statements.

7/
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year ended March 31, 2019 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2018

2019
. United Way
Worldwide )
Salaries, Technology dues and C
employee and other Campaign, Professional '

Grants and benefits : telephone dues and communications ‘services and

awards and taxes  Occupancy expenses  subscriptions and printing subcontractors de

Program services '
Community impact grants $ 1568039 % -3 -5 -3 -5 - % -3
Public Health Network - 486.477 7.895 - . 5861 361,389
211 New Hampshire ' - 343,071 - 55,402 7497 1,712 -
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance - 126,106 - - .- - 15,263
Whole Village Family Resource Center - 143,569 54,556 12.233 ’ - ' .- 30,000
Work United Program - 176,763 - - - - -
Other program services - 1,069,157 105,573 73,007 61,512 28,851 350,449
Total program services 1,568,039 2,345,143 168,024 140,642 69,009 - 36,424 757101
Supporting Services _ :

Management and general - 615,513 27,709 19,162 16,145 - 45,508
Fundraising - 681,435 30,677 21,214 17,874 43,277 3,330
Tolal supporting services - 1,296,948 58,386 40,376 34,019 43,277 48,838

Total funclional expenses % 1,568,039 § ' 3,642,091 $ 226,410 % 181,018 $ 103,028 § 79,701 $ 805,939 §



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Interest expense $

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘
Cash received from donors $ 7,984,041 § 7,858,294
Cash received from grantors 1,115,853 1,246,852
Administrative fees 58,555 62,683
Other cash received 150,870 171,469
Cash received from trusts 73,481 72,436
Designations paid (2,223,631) (2.093,989)
Net cash paid for funds held for others (14,740) (5.625)
Cash paid to agencies (1,911,005} (1,961,835)
Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others (5,468,487) (5.010,079)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (235,063) 340,206
' CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (35,906) (339,718)
Proceeds from sale of investments 14,712 13,345
Purchase of investments - (42,255)
Net cash used in investing activities (21,194) (368,628)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ‘
Repayments of long-term debt (12,027) (11,456)
Net decrease in cash (268,284) (39,878)
Cash, beginning of year 687,722 | 727,600
Cash, end of year $ 419,438 $ 687,722
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for: ,
11,915 % 11,445

Page 7



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way is the result of six United Ways merging together to create a single, efficient
organization that covers more than 80% of New Hampshire and Windsor County, Vermont. Granite United
Way improve lives by mobilizing the caring power of their communities. More than fundraisers, Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volunteer leadership to invest
donor dollars to help the community learn, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives,
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way’'s operating expenses. Donors
may designate their pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax~exempt status. Amounts
pledged to other United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as

. designations expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of finandal position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way irivests in the community through three different vehicles: -

March31l, =~ ' : 2019 2018
Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 1568039 § 1,959,583
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies - 1,899,443 "2,190,178
Granite United Way Program services. 3,936,823 3,735,319

Total $ 7404305 $ . 7885080

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Granite United Way (the “United Way”) have been’
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The significant accounting policies followed are
described below to enhance the usefuiness of the financial statements to the reader.

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets. and Labilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates. .

(continued on next page)
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GRANITTE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalénts: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Net assets: The United Way reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without.donor restrictions.
Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets without dongr/ time restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use
at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From tme to time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific -
purposes which makes them unavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amount to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted e_ndowmeﬁt) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

. The United Way had designated net assets without donor restrictions of $10,750 and $10,311 for
endowment at March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.-

'Net assets with donor/ time restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whase use is
limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are

" received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose Testriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor.restrictions include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy. '

See Notes 9 and 10 for more information on the composition of net assets with donor restrictions
and the release of restrictions, respectively.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $256,490 and $298,907 for the campaign years
ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at 4.5%
of the total pledges for both years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in thc accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way’s investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred revenue: The United Way charged a 10% administrative fee on the State Campaign designations
and 5%'administrat:ive fee on most other designations for both of the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

These admirustrative fees are recogmzed in the post campaign years, as this is the year they are available to
offset administrative expenses.

Contributions: The United Way recognizes contributions received and made, including unconditional
promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions received are reported as either
revenues without donor restrictions ore revenues with donor restricions. Contributions with donor
restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the by the donor in the same year as the
contribution is received are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to be met
before the contribution is made are not recorded until the conditions are met. There were no conditional
promises to give for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Donated goods and services: Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to be purchased if they had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. Various types of in-kind support, including services,
call center space, gift certificates, materials and other items, amounting to $58,179 and $63,929 have been
reflected at fair value in the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2013, respectively.

A substantal number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United Way's
program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers’ time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Functional allocation of expenses: The statements of functional expenses present expenses by function and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a spedific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of ime and effort.

Property and equipment: Property and équjpment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the étraight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years
Building and building iMPrOVEIMENES ... i scrnins s cosssesiss e sans s sasesnnes 5-31v2
Leasehold iMPrOVEMENES ... nisrsssssss e senesesssss st st tsensessrssiss e srsunsassnses 1D
Furniture and equipment ........c...coovvicrieeeeen: ettt are st et n o 310

(continued on next page)
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" GRANTTE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating measure: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The measure of operations includes all revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way’s programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictions to support operating activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources
outside of those program and services and are comprised of investment return, the changes in fair value of
the beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositions of assets. .

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to

concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from

individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the

large number of donors comprising the United Way's donor base. As a result, at March 31, 2019, the United

Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
. receivable. :

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At March 31, 2019, there was approximately $141,200
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exempton
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes ‘has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements. '

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way’s tax positions and concluded the United Way had
. maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.5. Federal or
.State tax authorities for tax years before 2016.

Change in accounting principle: In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958). The ASU amends the current reporting model for nonprofit
organizations and enhances their required disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the
presentation of only two classes of net assets now entitled "net assets without donor restrictions” and "net
assets with donor restrictions", (b) modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related
disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize the expiration of restrictions
on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d}
requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature and disclose a summary
of the allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative
‘information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment retumn net of external
and direct internal investment expenses, and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements
and' disclosures intended to increase the usefulness of nonprofit financial statements.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way has adopted this ASU for the year ended March 31, 2019 with retroactive application for
the March 31, 2018 financial statements. As a result, the United Way changed its presentation of its net
assets classes and expanded the footnote disclosures as required by the ASU. In addition, the investment
expenses are netted against investment return in the statements of activities and changes in net assets. The
United Way has opted to not disclose liquidity and availability information for March 31, 2018 as
permitted under the ASU in the year of adoption.

Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2014, the FASB issued, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers' in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the United Way expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance
when it becomes éffective on April 1, 2019. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. Management is currently evaluating the impact this will have on its
finandal statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued, Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02), which will be effective for the United
Way on April 1, 2020, with early adoption permitted. Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-
term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the discounted payments due under the lease
agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. Lessees (for capital and-operating leases) must apply a
modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. The modified retrospective approach
would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period
presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective transition approach. Management is currently
evaluating the impact this will have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). -

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurernent date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

» Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be

. corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

e Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

fcontinued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Firiancial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2019:

_ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money market funds : $ 8874 $ 22,740 $ -
Mutual funds: i
Domestic equity ' 66,002 - -
Fixed income . : 248,672 - _ -
Fixed income funds 171,086 7,207 -
Municipal bonds . 10,200 -
Corporate bonds - 146,380 -
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,726,207
Total 3 494,634 $ 186,527 $ 1,726,207

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money market funds $ 132,068 $ 22,280 § -
Mutual funds: :
Domestic equity . ‘ 61,523 - , -
Fixed income 244,862 - -
Fixed income funds . 177,247 - -
Municipal bonds . - 10,565 -
Corporate bonds - 23,503 -
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,782,840
Total $ 615,700 $ 56348 $ 1782840
Beneficial interest in
assets held by others
Balance, April 1, 2017 $ 1,691,022
Total unrealized gains, net of fees, included in changes in
net assets with donor restrictions 91,818
Balance, March 31, 2018 o $ 1,782,840
Total unrealized losses, net of fees, included in changes in X
net assets with donor restrictions _ - (56,633)
Balance, March 31, 2019 : ] $ 1,726,207

Amount of unrealized losses, net of fees, attributable to change in unrealized -
Josses relating to assets still held at the reporting date included in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets $ (56,633)

{(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources. )

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is’
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust’s assets at March 31, 2019 and 2018.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Way’s

significant finandal instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value,

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at March 31, 2019 2018
Land, buildings and building improvements $ 14245721 § 1,403,441
Leasehold improvements - 5,061 - 5,061
Furniture and equipment 452,679 437,854

" Total property and equipment 1,882,261 1,846,356
Less accumulated depreciation - {634,137) (558,493)
Total property and equipment, net 05 1,248124 § 1287863

Note 5. Endowment Funds Held by‘Othgrs

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hanpshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of each fund per year.

The estimated value of the future distributons from the funds is included in these finandial statements as
required by FASB ASC '958-605, however, all property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshu'e
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $69,042 and $68,060 from the agency endowed funds dunng the years ended
March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" Designated funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way.

The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the fund per year. These funds are not
included in these financial statements, since although all property in these funds was contributed to The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way, The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $4,439 and $4,376 from the designated funds during the year ended March 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The market value of these fund’s assets amounted to approximately $111,000 and
$114,600 as of March 31,.2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at March 31, ' 2019 2018
Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year
Federal Home Loan Classic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (4.82% at
March 31, 2019). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. Collateralized by

the United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH. $ 215936 % 227,963
Less portion payable within one year 12,843 12,718
Total long-term debt ' $ 203,093 § 215 245

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2020 $ 12,843
2021 : : 13,476
2022 ' 14,140
2023 : 14,836
2024 _ -15,568
Thereafter ' ‘ : 145,073

Total $ 215,936

The mortgage note contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which is tested imnua].ly{ based on
the year-end financial statements. ‘

The United Way has a revolving line-of-credit with Citizen’s Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of-credit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (5.75% as of March 31, 2019) and is secured by
all assets of the United Way. At March 31, 2019, there were no amounts outstanding on this line-of-credit
agreement. - '
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Funds Held for Others
The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

March 31, | . 2019 2018

Sycamore Gardens Project : $ -5 15,814
Work United Loan Default Program ’ 4,759 3,190
Concord Multicultural Festival ‘ 2,382 2,872
Get Moving Manchester ‘ 1,669 1,674
Better Together Lakes Region _ 245 245

Total : $ 9,055 § 23,795

Note 8. Endowment Funds

The United Way's endowment consists of four individual funds established for youth programs, Whole
Village Resource Center and general operating-support. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor- -
imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA} and, thus, classifies amounts in its donor-restricted
endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted unti] the
Board of Directors appropriates such amounts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
-purpose restrictions that must be met before reclassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amount contributed to an endowment fund, unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument. The United Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in
accordance with the prudent measures required under the law. Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA,
the United Way considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the
organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible
effect of inflaion and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and.the appreciation of
investments, (6) other resources of the organization, and (7) the investment policies of the United Way.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Underwater Endowment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment.funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA reguires the United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration.” The United Way did not have any funds with deficiencies for the
years erided March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Investment Return Qbjectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment policies,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks to
achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Lnvestment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations betwcen asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk. ‘

Spending Policy: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign’s income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Without Donor  With Donor

Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Board-designated endowment $ 10,750 $ - $ 110,750
Donor-restricted endowment funds:
Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained '
in perpetuity by donor - 142,652 142,652
Accumulated investment gains - 61,774 61,774
Total funds $ 10,750 § 204426 $ 215176

Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

: . . Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets, March 31, 2018 $ 10,311 % 196,094 $ 206,405
Investment return, net ‘ 439 . 8,332 8,771
Endowment net assets, March 31, 2019 $ 10,750 $ 204,426 § 215,176

(continued on next page)
‘Page 17
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Endowment net asset cc;;mpositjon by type of fund as of March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Without Donor

With Donor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Board-designated endowment $ 10,311 3 -5 10,311
Donor-restricted endowment funds:
Qriginal donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to bé maintained
in perpetuity by donor . ' - 142,652 142,652
Accumulated investment gains - 53,442 53,442
$ 10311 $ 196,094 § 206,405
Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31, 2018 are as follows:
Without Donor ~ With Donor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets, March 31, 2017 _ $ 9792 § 146,083 % 155,875
Contributions - . 42,255 42,255
[nvestment return, net 519 7,756 8,275
Endowment net assets, March 31, 2018 $ 10311 § 196094 § 206405
Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:
March 31, 2019 - 2018
Subject to expenditure for specified time period: :
Contributions receivable related to campaigns $ 3229124 % 3,450,040
Designations payable to other agencies and United Ways (926,494) (1,159,651)
2,302,630 2,290,389
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Manchester Proud: 474,325 -
Public Health Network services 276,668 155,441
Leader in Me 172,500 -
L.E.A.D. Program 25,000 -
* Work United 9,945 20,768
Woest Side Reads - 19,413
Other programs - 1,573
’ 958,438 197,195

(continued on next page)
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March 31, 2019 2018
Endowments subject to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (original amounts of
$142,652 in 2019 and 2018), which once
appropriated, is expendable to support:
" General Operations 80,774 77,482
Youth Programs 24,636 23,632
Whole Village Resource Center - 99,016 94,980
204,426 196,094
Beneficial interest in assets held by others: '
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire _
Charitable Foundation 1,726,207 1,782,840
Total net assets with donor restrictions 5,191,701 $ 4,466,518

Note10. Net Assets Released from Donor Restrictions

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or
by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors. The net assets released from

restrictions are as follows:

March 31,

2019 2018.
Purpose restricons accomplished:

Public Health Network services 964,089 $ 1,094,084
211 ' 363,894 273,160
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 108,877 135,517
Manchester Proud 292,860 -
Work United - 193,240 139,023

Bridge House and Whole Village Family Resource
Center upgrades . - 267,822
Other program services 113,524 315,340
-2,036,484 2,224,946
Time restrictions expired 4,250,661 4,832,648
Total net assets released from donor restrictions 6,287,145 § 7,057,594
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Note 11. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way's financial assets available within one year of the financial statements of finandal position
date for general expenditure are as follows: :

March 31, : ' ' 2019

Cash $ 419,438
Investments : 681,098
Contributions receivable, net . ‘ . 3,575,081
Beneficial interest in trust : - 1,726,207
Accounts and rent receivable 9,982
Total financial assets available within one year 6,411,806
Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions ‘ (958,438)
Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor restrictions (204,426)
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (1,726,207)
* Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure within one year (2,889,071)
Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment ' (10,750}
Total financial assets available to nmnagément
for general expenditure within one year $ 3,511,985
Ligquidity Management

The United Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additionally, the United
Way has board designated net assets without donor restrictions that, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could be made available for current
operations, if necessary. ' ' :

Note 12. Pension Fund
The United Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403tbl) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the years ended

March 31, 2019 and 2018, the United Way contributed $92,128 and $84,921, respectively, to employees
participating in the plan. '

Page 20



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel13. Lease Cormmmitments

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four
year term commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $3,337 through Aug‘uSt 31, 2018. The rent .will then be
increased by 3% annually on each anniversary date of the lease.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five
year term commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $5,905 through June 30, 2019. The rent will then be
increased by 3% annually on each anniversary date of the lease.

" During the year ended March 31, 2018, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a one
year term commencing January 15, 2018 through January 14, 2019 for an office space in Laconia, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $425 through January 14, 2019. This lease was

amended i.n January 2019 to extend the term until July 2019 and then terminate the lease. '

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the United Way entered into an Operat:mg lease agreement for a three
year term commencing September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2018 for an office space in West Lebanon, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $1,425 through August 31, 2018.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five
year term commencing on September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $1,600 through August 31,,2019. The rent consists of
two different payments, one for rent and another for common costs and charges. After August 31, 2019, the
rent will increase each year depending on the consumer price index. After January 1, 2019, the common costs
and charges increase each year depending on the United Way’s proportionate share of these costs.

Du.nng the year ended March 31, 2019, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two
year term commencing on January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020 for an office space in Berlin, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $181 through December 31, 2019. After December 31,
2019, the monthly rent payment will increase to $187 through December 31, 2020. The lease continues on a
month to month basis after December 31, 2020.

Total rent expense for these leases amounted to approx.lmately $136,000 and $143,000 for the years ended
March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The United Way leases multiple copy machines under the terms of operating lease agreements. The monthly
lease payments amount to $2,044. The lease expenses amounted to approximately $21,000 and $2,000 for the
years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(continued on next page)
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The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year g.gding March, 31 ' : . : Total

2020 ‘ $ 161,114
2021 : 161,234
2022 ' 71,136
2023 '33,420
2024 ' ' . 10,370
Total . $ 437,274

Note 14. Commitments

In Plymouth, the United Way rents space in a building which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to'$1,500 per month. For the years
ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the rental income amounted to $73,548 and $87,535, respectively.

Note 15. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

~

The United Way paid dues to United Way of Worldwide. The United Way s dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $86,779 and $79,826 for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 16. Subsequent Events
The United Way has evaluated Subsequent events through August 15, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. Subsequent

to year end, the United Way changed..its fiscal year end to June 30. There were no other subsequent events
that would require disclosure in financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION -
Year Ended March 31, 2019

Blueberry Express Day Care Center

Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire:

Broken Ground School Unit
. Mill Brook School Unit
Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Concord Family YMCA:
Child Development Center
Kydstop-Camp
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Merrimack Valley Day Care '
NH Legal Assistance
NH Bar Association Pro Bono Referral Program
Penacook Community Center
Second Start:
Second Start Alternative High School
Adult Education
The Friendly Kitchen
The Friends Program:
Foster Grandparents
Emergency Housing
The Mayhew Program
The Pittsfield Youth Workshop
Tiny Twisters Child Care Center -
Waypoint CFS Counseling Program

. Adverse Childhood Experiences Training
Boys and Girls Club of Central New Hampshire
Concord Cold Weather Shelter

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 30,000

5,000 -

5.000
18,000

30,000
15,000
25,000
90,000
50,000
12,000
12,396

10,000
10,000
5,500

33,000
18,000
10,000
30,000

7,500
20,000

$ __ 4363%

Emerging
Opportunity
Grants

$ 10;710
55,000
10,000

$ 75,710
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- SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2019
Community
Impact
Awards
Adaptive Sports Partners of the North Country $ 6,500
Boys and Girls Club of the North Country 10,000
Copper Cannon Camp : 6,000
Grafton County Senior Citizens: ‘
Accessible Transportation and Food : 5,000
ServiceLink , ' . ] 3,700
Access to Enriching Environments for Older Adults . 5,000
RSVP Bone Builders 5,191
NH Legal Assistance . 5,000
Northern Human Services . 5,000
The Family Resource Center 3,000
Tri-County Community Action Program: '
Support Center at Burch House 4,000
Tyler Blain House 5,000
Waypoint Parenting Transitional Living Program , 5,000
$- 68,391
Emerging
Opportunity
Grants
Organized Acts of Kindness - § 2,271
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2019

Center on Rural Innovation
Child Care Center in Norwich
Copper Cannon Camp
Cover Home Repair
Dismas of Vermont
Global Campuses Foundation
Good Neighbor Health Care
Good Neighbor Health Clinic
Red Logan Dental Clinic
Grafton County Senior Citizens Council
Increasing Access to Enriching Environments for Older Adults
Meeting older adults' needs for accessible transportation and food
RSVP Bone Builders
ServiceLink
Green Mountain Children's Center
Low to Moderate Income Scholarships
Work Force Development _
Hartford Community Restorative Justice Center
Restorative Justice Panel Program
Restorative Reentry Program

. Headrest

HIV/HCV Resource Center
Mascoma Community Healthcare
Safeline '
Second Wind Foundation
Upper Valley Tuming Point
Willow Grove
Senior Solutions (CASVT)
Southeastern Vermont Community Action
Special Needs Support Center of the Upper Valley .

Community
Impact
Awards

2,000
5,000
1,000
14,000
8,500
4,500

4,000
6,000

1,183
4,500
4,000
1,000

7,500
3,500

8,300
8,500-
/5,000
6,000
8,000
8,500

8,000
5,000
5,000
17,500
4,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS
..UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)

Year Ended March 31, 2019
Community
Impact
Awards
(Continued)
Springfield Family Center ' $ . 3,215
Springfield Supported Housing Program : 8,000
Stagecoach Transportation, a division of Tn—VaUey Transit - . : 1,000
The Children's Center of the Upper Valley 18,159
The Family Place : , 20,000
The Mayhew Program 4,000
TLC Family Resource Center : : 7.500
Twin Pines Housing Trust
Expanding Supportive Services Program 9,000
SASH (Supports and Services at Home) ' 5,000
Upper Valley Haven '
Health/Food Services 10,000
Education/Shelter Services - 8,500
Upper Valley Trails Alliance . 1,000
Valley Court Diversion Programs ' - 8,000
Visions for Creative Housing Solutions : - 6387
Waypoint
CFS Counseling Program-Upper Valley 6,887
- Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program 8,500
West Central Behavioral Health ‘ 8,025
Willing Hands Enterprises _ ‘ ' 7,500
Windham & Windsor Housing Trust ‘ 9,000
Windsor Hospital Corporation ' 5,000
WISE '
Crisis and Advocacy Program _ 8,500
Emergency Shelter and Supportive Housing ' : 2,104
~ Prevention and Education Program ; 7,500
Zack's Place Vermont ' 2,500
$ 325,760

Page 26



GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY sci{EDUI.E OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2019
Community
Impact -
' Awards
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. $ 22,000
Girls Incorporated of New Hampshire : 10,000
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. 10,000
Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy 325,000
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 15,000
NHBA Pro Bono Referrai Program : 12,000
Rockingham Nutrition and Meals on Wheels Prog'ram 12,000
St. Joseph Community Services, Inc. - 25,461
The Mayhew Program 10,000
The Upper Room :
Adolescent Wellness Program ' ' 12,000
Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program ‘ . - 15,000
Waypoint ‘ 10,000
YWCA 22,000
: $ 500,461
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS '

NORTHERN REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2019
Community
Impact
Awards
Bethany Christian Services $ 3,000
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. 2,500
Copper Cannon Camp 2,500
Harvest Christian Fellowship: -
Community Café 3,936
Feeding Hope Food Pantry 4,000
Helping Hands North, Inc. 3,500
Memorial Hospital, Women's Health 2,500
North Conway Community Center 2,000
North Country Community Recreation Center 2,500
Northern Human Services 4,000
The Family Resource Center at Gorham 2,500
Tri-County Community Action Program
Coos Service Link Resource Center 1,000
RSVP Program 1,000
" Senior Meals of Coos County 1,000
$ 35,936
Emerging
Opportunity
Grants
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. $ - 500
Harvest Christian Fellowship ' 500
UNH Cooperative Extension 464
$ 1,464
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIF]ED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNTI'Y GRANTS

CENTRAL REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2019

Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire
Health First Family Care Center

Kingswood Youth Center

Lakes Region Child Care Services

Lakes Region Community Developers

Lakes Region Comununity Services

Lakes Region Mental Health Center

New Beginnings Without Violence and Abuse
Pemi Youth Center

.The Circle Program

Community
Impact
" Awards

$ 15,000

10,000
4,500
30,000

. 10,000
© 10,900
20,000
10,000
4,500
6,750

$ 121,650
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended March 31, 2019

Total Expenditures of Federal Awnards

The accompanying nales are an infegral part of this schedule,

Federal Grantor . Pass-through Federal Expenditures
Pass-through Grantor Entity Identifying CFDA Federal to
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster
{ Health a uman Servi
State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network .
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 05-95-52-920510-3380 93.959 86,813 $ 73,733
Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Prepa.redncss Aligned Coop Agreements 05-95-90-902510-7545 93.074 87,750 79,726
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 05-95-90-901010-5362 93.758 25,243 25,243
Young Adult Leadership Program 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 20,919 12,000
Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 55,861 49,456
Total State of N.H. Departinent of Henith and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network 276,586 240,158
State of N.H. Department of Health and Human  Services - Capital Asea Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 05-95-92-920510-3380 93.959 88,236 -
Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 05-95-90-902510-7545 93.074 83,420 -
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 05-95-90-901010-5362 93.758 27,671 -
Immunization Cooperative Agreements 05-95-90-902510-5178 93.268 9.730 141
Young Adult Leadership Program 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 18,901 12,000
Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Sbra!egles 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 64,004 54,091
Total State of N.H. Department of Healih and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Network 291,962 67,502
State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health )
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 05-95-92-920510-3380 93.959 98,616
Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness A.ligncd Coop Agreements (5-95-90-902510-7545 9.074 72,264 .
Preveniive Health and Health Services Block Grant ' 05-95-90-901010-5362 N7 33,948 -
Immunization Cooperative Agreements 05-95-90-902510-5178 93.268 10,269 5,260
Young Adult Leadership Program . 05-95-92.920310-3395 93.243 20,389 12,000
Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 31,931 -
Totel State of N.H. Departinent of Henlth and Human Services - Carroll Com:ly Coalition for Public Health 267417 17,260
‘Total Regional Public Healtlt Network Services Cluster 835,965 324,920
1S, Internal Reveque Services
Deparunent of the Treasury
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Matching Grant Program 21.00% 45,971 -
1J.S. Department of Health and Human Services
State of N.H. Division for Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
State Opioid Response Grant 97.067 98,572 -
980,508 3_ 32,920
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (“the Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way (“the United Way”), under programs of the federal government for the year ended
March 31, 2019. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the United Way, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the United Way.

Note 2. Basis of Accounting .

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
United Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program

_costs. Entire program costs could be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as
applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, .
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs are determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in the accompanying Schedule are determined by the independent auditor to be major programs.
'Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes $44,026 claimed as an indirect cost recovery using an approved indirect cost

rate of 5-percent. The United Way has not elected to use the 10-percent de n‘urumls indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCGCEATEIGN
v CEerTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

' STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH '
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Granite United Way as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15,
2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Granite United Way’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Way’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Way’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in'the normal cousse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over finandial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
Limnitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, materjal weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite United Way’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

- Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemnal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s intermnal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

’)Z athan Jipchola CM'dnnd__

Concord, New Hampshire
August 15, 2019
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" Cerrinigp PusLic AcCounTanTs & Busmvzss ADVISORS

é NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
&

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

. Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Granite United
Way’s major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2019. Granite United Way’s major federal
. programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Fmdmgs and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite United Way's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S: Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require -
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite
United Way's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite United Way’s

compliance.

Page 34
70 Commercial Sireet, 4th Floor 59 Emerald Street ' 44 School Sirsel
Concord, MH. 03301 Keene. NH 03431 . . Lebanon, NH 03768
v §03-224-5357 v 6{13-357-7665 v: A03-448-2630

f: 603-224-379% - C - 603.224.3792 f: 603-443-2476



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Granite United Way complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirernents referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be

* reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2019-001. Our opinion of each major federal program

is not modified with respect to this matter. . :

Granite United Way’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Granite United Way's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response. '

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
~ compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing proceduses that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
. purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control ovér compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over compliance. '

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control guer compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility’
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
. control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration-of internal controt over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiendies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2019-001, which we consider to be a significant
deficiency. : :

Granite United Way’s response to the internal contral over compliance finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Granite United Way's
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response was not subjec;ced to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

.’7ﬂ%dn Wacholin ' Gmpmd_

Concord, New Hampshire
- August 15, 2019
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? __— Yes No
Are any significant deficiencies identified? . Yes None Rt;ported
Is any noncompliance material to financial statement noted? —— Yes No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs: B
A.;e any material weaknesses identified? ____ Yes No
Are any significant deficiencies identified? _X_Yes Nc;ne Reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: ~ unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are }equired to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? . Yes No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers

Cooperative Agreements
93.069- Public Health Emergency Preparedness
93,758 - Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant
93.243 - Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
93.268 - Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs:

Name of federal program or cluster

Regional Public Health Network Services
Cluster

93.959 - Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
93.074 - Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned

$750,000

No

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

Page 37




GRANITE UNITED WAY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Section [I - Financial Statement Findings
No financial statement findings noted.

Section IIT - Federal Awards Findings
Finding 2019-001:

Information on the Federal Program

Cluster: Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster
Pass-Through Entity: Various (see page 30)

Award Number: Various (see page 30)

Compliance Requirements: Subrecipient Monitoring
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Noncompliance

Criteria
Program requirements state that expenthureS by subrecipients must be revaewed and monitored by the
grantee.

Condition

For the year ended March 31, 2019, we reviewed a selection of subrecipient expenditures and
reimbursement requests and noted that supporting documentation was not being monitored by Granite
United Way during the first half of the fiscal year.

Questoned Costs
None noted.

Context
Of the seven selections tested, four did not have evidence supporting the morutormg activities were takmg
place.

Effect

As a result, Granite United Way could not provide support that they were actively monitoring the
expenditures and activities performed by the subrecipients.

Cause : :

Subrecipients provided summaries of expenses and would provide support if requested, however Granite
United Way did not request supporting documentation until halfway through the fiscal year when they
were made aware they needed to monitor subrecipients more closely.

Recommendation

We recommend management obtain detailed Supportmg documentation for each expend.lture from
subrecipients. We also recommend that management ensure they are in compliance with other
subrecipient monitoring processes such as performing pre-award risk assessments at the time of each
award, obtaining audit reports and audit communication letters and following up on any related audit
findings or issues. '

Page 38



GRANITE UNITED WAY .
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Responsible Officials Response and Corrective Action Planned

Management implemented a process during the year in which they are collectmg all required
documentation from each subrecipient and closely monitoring their activities. Prior to the implementation
of this procedure, the supporting documentation was available to management by request. Management
was not aware they were required to review supporting documentation for each expenditure. Beginning
during the second half of the year, management has been reviewing detailed documentation.

Planned Implementation Date of Corrective Action
Already implemented.

Person Responsible for Corrective Action
Shannon Bresaw
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Granite United Way . LIVE UNITED

S

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/ CELL / FAX | E-MAIL

2020 Board of Di'rectors

Or. Larissa Baia Lakes Region Communily
President, Regional College Dept. | College

379 Belmant Road
Laconia, NH 03246
Assistant: Liz Lawson

Joseph Bator Primary Bank
207 Route 101
Bedford, NH 03110

William D. Bedor, CPA (Bill) . Creative Financial Strategies,
Inc.

Secrarary PO Box 350

North Country Campaign Cha:r & Littleton, NH 03561 .
Community impact Chair '

Kathleen Bizarro-Thunberg (Kathy) NH Hospital Association
Executive Vice President 125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

Joseph Carelli Cilizen's Bank
President of NH and VT 800 EIm Street, NE 1540 )

Manchester, NH 03101 .
Assistant: Mary Charron '

Jason Cole Catholic Medical Center
Genera!l Counsel 100 McGregor Street
Manchester, NH 03102

Assistant: Lee Moriarty

Michael Delahanty Salem School District
Superintendent of Schools 38 Geremonty Drive
Salem, NH 03079

Assistant; Patty Scanlan

Coug delara Baker | Newman | Noyes
650 EIm Street ‘
Suite 302

Manchester, NH 03101




Granite United Way

LIVE UNITED

| united [\ i
2020 Board of Directors ~

BOARD MEMBER

AODDRESS PHONE/ CELL / FAX / E-MAIL

Patricia Donahue

Chris Emond ' (
Executive Director

Boys & Girls Club of Central
New Hampshire

876 No. Main St.

Laconia, NH 03246

Paul Falvey
President

Assistant: Maggie.Bartholomew

Bank of New Hampshire
62 Pleasant Streel
Laconia, NH 03246

Marlene Hammond
Underwriting Account Execulive

Lincoln Financial Group .
One Granite Place
Cornicord, NH 03301

Charles Head (Charlie)
President & CEO

Sanbom, Head & Associates,
Inc. ‘
20 Foundry Street

Concord, NH 03301

Joseph Kenney
Senior Vice President,
Commercial Lending Officer

Assistant: Linda O'Donnetl

The Provident Bank
115 So. River Road
Bedford, NH (3110

Sally Kraft ‘

Vice President, Cammunity Health,
Population Health Management
Div. .

Assistant: Brittany Goodwin

Dartmouth Hitchgock Medical

Center '

46 Centerra Parkway - N
Lebanon, NH 03766




Granite United Way LIVE UNITED

2020 Board of Directors United
. Way (<27
BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/FAXJCELUEMAIL
Christina Lachance NH Charitable Foundation
Director of Early Childhood and 37 Pieasant Street
Family Initiatives Concord, NH 03301

Assistant: Hannah Robinson

Heather Staples Lavoie Geneia
President 50 Commercial Street
Chair Manchester, NH 03101

Dr. Chuck Lioyd

Caralyn Maloney - Hypertherm
Treasurer ) P.0. Box 5010
Hanover, NH 03755

Lawrence Major {Larry) Pike Industries, Inc.
Director of Government Relations 3 Eastgate Park Road
Belmont, NH 03307

Paul Mertzic Network 4 Health
401 Cypress Street
Manchester, NH 03103

Nannu Nobis Nobis Engineering
CEO 18 Chenell Drive
. Concord, NH 03301

Granite United Way | ) _ I.W UN?_%D




2020 Board of Directors

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONEIFAXICELUEMAIL
Sean Owen Wedu ‘
President & CEO 20 Market Street
iImmediate Past Chair Manchester, NH 03101
GUW Markating Chair
Assistant:

Joseph Purington (Joe)
Vice President
NH Electric Field Operations

Assistant: Roxanne Parkhurst

Eversource Energy
780 No. Commercial Street
Manchester, NH 03101

{Beth Rattigan
Altorney

Upper Valley CIC Chair

Downs Rachlin Martin
67 Etna Road
Lebanon, NH 03766

| _3
.

Pater Rayno
Executive Vice President/NH
Banking & Lending Director

Enterprise Bank
130 Main Street
Salem, NH 03079

Betsey Rhynhart
Vice President of Popuiation Heallh

Concord Hospital
250 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Jeffery Savage (Jeff)
Community Volunteer

P.O. Box 2104
Concord, NH 03302

Bill Sherry
Chief Operating Officer

Assistant: Kathy Scanlon

Granite United Way
22 Concord Street
Manchester, NH 03010

Anthony Speller (Tony)

Senior Vice President, Engineering
and Technical Operations

First Vice Chair

Assistant: Robin Wright

Comcast
676 Island Pond Road
Manchester, NH 03109




" Granite United Way

LIVE UNITED

i United
2020 Board of Directors | Way|
BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS P.HONEIFAXICELLIEMAIL

Charla Stevens
Attorney

Mctane, Middleton Law Firm
900 Elm Street, Floor 10
Manchester, NH 03101

Rodney 'fenney {Rod)
Community Volunteer

8 Hillside Road ’
Concord, NH 03301 o : \

Anna Thomas
" | Public Health Director

Southern Region CIC Chair

528 Eim Street

Eanchester Health Department
1
anchester, NH 03101

Robert Tourigny
Executive Director

NeighborWorks Southem NH
801 Elm Street, 2™ Floor
Manchester, NH 03101

Patrick Tufts
President & CEQ

Assistant: Jennifer Sabin

Granite United Way
22 Concord St, Floor 2
Manchester, NH 03101

Jeremy Veilleux
Principal
Tregsurer .

" Manchester, NH 03101

Baker | Newman | Noyes
650 Elm Street
Suite 302

Michael Wagner
Chief Financial Officer

Assistant: Jen Hamilton

Dartmouth College
7 Lebanon Street, Suite 302
Har)over, NH 03755

Cass Walker (Catherine)

Central Region CIC Chair

LRGHealthcare
80 Highland Street
Laconia, NH 03246

Updated: 1/21/2020



SHANNON SWETT BRESAW, MSW

EDUCATION,

Master.of Social Work
2002 — 2004 University 6f New Hampshire Durham, NH

Bachelor .of Arts - Clinical Counseling Psychology

1999 — 2002 Keene State College Keene, NH
EXPERIENCE
2007 - Present | Granite United Way Concord, NH

Vice President of Public Health

Accomplishments:

o Provides Program Director support for the NH Govemnor's Recovery Friendly Workplace
~initiative through program development, staff oversight, resource development
marketing/communications, and evaluation:

s Works to align and leverage Granite United Way investments and strategies ‘with other
statewide efforts to address. public health, addiction, and social determinants of health

e Provides content expertise and consultation in the areas of substance use disorders,
public health, community development, contract management, grant writing, reporting,
and evaluation

¢ Develops and maintains strategic partnerships and relationships with key stakeholders
across NH

s Provides contract management and 0vers:ght to 3 out of the 13 Regional Publlc Health
Networks in NH, including the Capital Area Public Health Network, the Carroll County
Coalition for Public Health and the South Central Public Health Network

¢ Provides direction and lcadership towards achievement of each Nelwork’s philosophy,
mission, strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and scrvice
delivery, financial management, and community/public rclations

¢ Coordinates all aspects of federal, state, and local grants and contracts, including resource
devclopment/grant-writing, fi Fnancual oversight and reporting

¢ Decvclops community health improvement plans, cvaluation plans, and other data-driven,
rcscarch-informed strategic plans for the Networks

¢ Works with community impact committces and voluntccrs through Granite _



2005 - 2007 Community Response (CoRe) Coalition Belknap County, NH
Ouireach Coordinator, Project Director

Accomplishments:

o Provided leadership for a county-wide, regional alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse
prevention coalition

» Strengthened capacity of coalition through outreach and collaboration, including partnerships
with 10 community sectors, including govcmmcnt schools, businesses, healthcare, and
safety :

e Coordinated all aspects of federal, state, and local grants, including financial oversight,
progress reports, communications, and work plan goals, objectives, and activities

» Déveloped, coordinated, promoted, and implemented events, programs, and trainings for
youth and adults

s Strengthened youth leadership and involvement in substance abuse prevention activities

 Supervised part-time staff, youth leaders, and volunteers

2004 - 2005 Caring Community Network of the Twin Rivers {CCNTR) Franklin, NH
Community Program Specialist

Accomplishments:

¢ Assisted in development of programming related to strengthening the public health
infrastructure

e Recruited new participants to agency committees and projects

e Facilitated organizational collaboration, compiled research, and dcveloped proposals to
funding sources to address community needs

e Facilitated several ongoing committees -

. Dcvclopcd and mamtamcd productive relationships with community and state leaders and
agencies

« Participated in several trainings/seminars related to issues including substance abuse
prevention, emergency preparedness, leadership, and public health infrastructure-
development,

*  Wrote numerous articles and press releases concerning community and public health

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

» American Public Health Association: NH Affiliate Reprcscnlanvc to the Goveming
Council 2018-Current

» NH Public Health Association: Board Member 2018-Current

Prevention Task Force of the Governor's Commission (Co-Chair): 2017-Current

» NH Govemor’s Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018

» NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Committee (Prevention chrcscnlatlve) 2016-2018

» NH Alcohol and Other Drug Scrvnce Providers Association: Treasurer 2007-2011,
'2014-2015

» NH Prevention Certification Board's Peer Review Committee: 2009-2011.
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Professional Profile

» Coalition Building ‘ *  Budgeting

¢ Plan Development "+ Volunteer Management
» Resource Coordination »  GranuProposal Writing
* Logistics + Organization

e Time management < Leadership

Professional Accomplishments

Public Health ' :
o Provide direction and leadership towards achievement of the Public Heakth Regions’ philosophy. mistion,
strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service delivery, financial
- management. human resource management, and community and public relations

Regional Resource Coordination ‘
s Collected and disseminated data on avzilable resources critical for response ro public health emergency.
» Developed working relationship with siakeholders in Public Health Region.

Public Health Coalition
»- Regional Public Health Emergency Response Annex development
+ Resource Coordination and Development
+ Heakhaare Coalitlon Building
* Regional Partner Development
o Clin Operation Development
»  Medical reserve Corps Volunteer Management and Training’

« Policy Development
»  Team Building

Captain of Operations
+ Developed suf and operational procedures for full time saff -
+  Oversee Training Progrzm
s Faciliate QA/QI
e Facilitated and miintained data entry system and procedures for all of Fire departments operations and patient
tracking
¢ Created Personnel Manual and operational guidelines -
' Secured grant funding
o VYolunteer Management -




Work History

Assistant Vice President of Public

Health
Senlor Director of Public Health

' Public Health Region Emorgenc.y
Preparedness Diroctor

Executive Director
Preparedness Planner

. Regional Resource Coordinator
Captain of Operations

Certiﬁcations

* Institute for Local Public Health Practices

« Loal Government Leadership Institute

¢ Antioch New England Institute

Granite United Way

Granite United Way

Capiaal Area Public Health Network | GUW
Concord NH

Carroll County Coalition for Public Health,
Qssipee NH

Capitz) Area Public Health
Network/Concord Mospial, Concord NH

-New England Center for Emergency -

Preparedness! Dartmouth College. Lebanon
NH

Barnstead Fire Rescue,
Barnstead NH

» ICS, WebEOC, SNS 101

Mary Reed Page. 2

2018 preseﬁt

2016 -2018
. 2013 - 1016

2011 - 2013
2009 - 2011

1009

2001-2010

» HAZMAT Awareness and Operations
» (PR, Blood borne Pathogens

* DHHS laventory Management System Training « EMS Field Training Officer
» FEMA 29. 100, 120.5, 130. 200, 244, 250, 250.7, 300, s Fire Fighter C2F2 .

+546.12. 5472, 700, 701, 701a. 704, 800.B. 804, 808

e Department of Homeland Set:u;-ity Exercise and

Evaluation Program {MSEEF)

instructor

o COC SN Mass Ditpensing Course, Atlanta GA

s Amateur Radio Operator — Genenal Class

» STEP proknm instructor, Are You Ready .




Lauren E McGivnley
Newmarket, NH

, Objective
I welcome the opportunity to work as an integral part of a team of community members that are
dedicated to the health, safety, and advocacy of people living in New Hampshire.

Work Expericnce

Granite United Way
Manchester, NH
Concord,NH
Ossipee, NH

Senior Director of Public Health, January 2020-Current

211 NH State Opioid Response Project Director, January 2019-Current

211 NH Resource Database Manager, March 2018-December 2018

I am cui‘rently serving as the Sr. Director of Public Health in both the Capital Region and
Carroll County. I have remained the State Opioid Response Project Director for 211 NH and
Granite United Way and 1 am responsible for representing 211 NH in the planning and
implementation of the new statewide Doorways project with the 9 Regional Doorways in
partnership with the Department of Health and Human Services. 1 have continued to supervise
the Resource Database team with 21 INH. ‘

New Generation Inc.
Greenland, New Hampshire
603-436-4989

Parehting Education and Afiercare Coordinator, August 2012-February.2018

Whole Health Outreach Coordinator August 2008-August 2012 _

[ was the Parenting Education and Afiercare Coordinator at New Generation Inc, in
Greenland, New Hampshire. This 1s a facility dedicated to providing long tenm support,
education, and shelter to homeless families. [ directed all educational programming and aftercare
programming for both current and past residents. My previous position as the Whole Health
Outreach Coordinator involved developing the current policies and procedures of all shelter
programming including long term case management and aftercare. ‘

Joan G. Lovering Health Center
Greenland, NH
603-436-7588

Clinic Support Staff, October 2013 - February 2017

In October of 2013 [ was excited to begin working with The Joan G. Lovering Health
Clinic (formerly the Feminist Health Center). Duties included health counseling, erganizational



tasks, proficient use of Word and Excel, and the scheduling of appointments with a strong
understanding and commitment to HIPAA standards.

Education

Goddard College

123 Pitkin Rd.

Plainfield, VT, 05667 :

Attended Goddard College’s Bachelors of Health Arts and Sciences Program.

Skills and Certifications

Certified Facilitator

The Nurturing Parenting Program

This is an evidence based parent/child education program. I facilitate one weekly group
session with 7-10 women and one weekly individual sessions with each participating family.

Certified Red Cross First Aid/ CPR/ AED Instructor '

I am titled as an “Authorized Provider” to instruct and certify individuals in First Aid,
CPR and AED. I am able to provide this service to the employees and volunteers of the
organization that employs me. ‘ '

- Certified Infant Massage Instructor

Liddle Kidz Foundation

I am able to provide professionai instruction of the techniques of infant massage to
parents and caregivers. | recently traveled to Vietnam with 14 other women to introduce
nurturing touch and care techniques to 10 different orphanages throughout the country.

Certified HCV Basic Educator and Counsclor .

HCYV Advocate _

I am certified to provide education on the most current prevention methods and health
practices concerning Hepatitis C. '

Certified in CPI (Crisis Prevention and Intervention)

I have attended many different trainings offered by the State of New Hampshire,
including wbrkshops on Substanée Abuse Counseling, Suicide Prevention, and Bloodborne -
Pathogen Education.



Granité United Way

Key Personnel

Name

Job Title

Salary

% Paid from
this Contract

Amount Paid from
this Contract

Shannon Bresaw Vice President of Public $55.13/hr 0% $0
' ) Health
| Mary Reed Assistanl Vice President of $41.05/hr 5% $20,011.88
: Public Health
Lauren McGinley Sr. Director of Public Health $32.30/hr 15%

$9,450.00




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amsndment #3 to the Reglonal Public Health Network Services

This 3@ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #3) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State"” or "Department”) and Greater Seacoast Community Health,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 311 Route 108
Somersworlh NH 03878.

WHEREAS pursuani to an agreement (the "Contract”) epproved by the Governor and Executive Councll
on Juns 18, 2019, (item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (liem #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(tem # 47) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specifiad in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree {0 extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth hersin, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$740,800.

2. Add Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID-19 Response, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

3. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2. Program Funding,
Subsection 2.2 to read:

2.2 The Contractor may be reimbursed for allowable cosis dating back to January 20, 2020 for the
provision of services specified in Exhibit A-1 Additional Scope of Services COVID-19 Résponse. -

4. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding by deleting it in its entirety and replacing with Exhibit B-1,
Program Funding, Amendment #3.

Greater Seacoast Community Health Amendmaent #3 Contractor InitiaisQ—L""
$5-2018-DPHS-28-REGION-05-A03 . Page 1 of 3 Data g —~{



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the Govemor's approval issued
under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set thelr hends as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

@—977,20;)& é‘ me’ LisalMotrts

Date :
Title: Director

Greater Seacoast Community Health

20 ,ﬂ‘aMfzqm_,c\
Date f/Ti?lgm dqw_o-«ﬁ\—*f\

Greatar Ssacoast Community Health Amendment #3
55-2018-DPHS-28-REGION-05-A03 Pagoe 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Reglonal Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

07/17/20 Cathorcre Finoa

Date #l?ime Catherine Pinos, Attorney

| hereby certlfy that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor approval issued under the
Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Greater Seacoast Community Heatth Amendment #3

88-2016-DPHS-28-REGION-05-A03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

. Additional Scope of Services - COVID-19 Response

1. Scope of Services
1.1. Emergency Operations

1.1.1. The Contractor shall enact emergency operations across the Reg:onal
" Public Health Network for COVID-19 efforts by:

1.1.1.1.  Activating the regions Multi-Agency Coordination Entity (MACE)
at a level appropriate to meet the needs of the response.

1.1.1.2.  Staffing the MACE with the numbers and skills necessary to
support the response and ensure worker safety.

1.1.1.3.  Assessing the region's publtc health and healthcare system
training needs.

1.1.1.4.  Providing training designed to improve the regions public health
and healthcare system response.

1.1.1.5.  Ensuring plans and regions response actions incorporate the
- latest DPHS guidance and direction.

1.2.  Responder Safety and Health

1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure the health and safety of the public health
response workforce in the Regional Public Health Network, including but not
limited to:

1.2.1.1. lmplementlng staff resiliency programs, information, and referrals
to responder mental health support.

1.2.1.2. Determining responder safety and health gaps and implementing
_corrective actions. '

©1.2.1.3. Documenting and tracking the Regional Public Health Network's
personal protective equipment inventory.

1.3. Identification of Vulnerable Populations

1.3.1. The Contractor shall identify and implement mitigation strategies for
populations at risk for morbidity, mortality, and other adverse outcomes.

Greater Seacoast Community Health Exhibit A-1 Contractor Inillals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

1.3.2. The Contractor shall coordinate with governmental and nongovernmental -
programs that can be leveraged to provide health and human services and
disseminate information to connect the public with available services.

1.4.  Information Sharing and Public Information

1.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure information regarding the COVID-19 efforts are
provided to the public, including but not limited to: -

1.4.1.1. Disseminating information, alerts, warnings, and notifications
regarding risks and self-protective measures to the public,
particularly with at-risk and vulnerable populations and public
health responders,

1.4.1.2. Monitoring local news stories and social media postings to
determine if information is accurate, identify messaging gaps, and
coordinate with DHHS to adjust communications as needed.

1.41.3. Coordinating communication messages, products, and programs
with DHHS, key partners and stakeholders to harmonize response
messaging. ' ‘

1.5. Distribution and Use of Medical Material

15.1. The Contractor shall ensure capacity for a mass vacéination'campaign once
a COVID-19 vaccine becomes available, including:

1.5.1.1.  Maintaining ability for vaccine-specific cold chain management.

1.5.1.2. Coordinating targeted and mass vaccination clinics for emergency
response.

1.5.1.3. Rapidly identifying high-risk persons requiring vaccine.

1.5.1.4. Planning to prioritize limited medical countermeasures (MCM)
based on guidance from CDC and the Department.

1.5.1.5. Ensuring capacity for distribution of MCM and supplies.

1.6.  Surge Staffing

1.6.1. The Contractor shall activate mechanisms for surging public health
responder staff.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall recruit, enroll, activate, train and deploy volunteers,
including but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Medical Reserve Corps (MRC).

1.6.2.2. Citizens Emergency Response Teams (CERT).
Greater Seacoast Community Health Exhibit A-1 _ Contractor Initiats =) (.-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

Exhibit A-1

1.7.  Public Health Coordination with Healthcare Systems

1.7.1.  The Contractor shall coordinate with the Granite State Healthcare Coalition,
its member agencies, and other health care organizations, emergency
management, and other relevant partners and stakeholders to assess the
public health and medical surge needs of the community.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall participate in the activation of Altemative Care Sltes as
requested by the sponsoring hospital(s).

1.8.  Jurisdictional Recovery

1.8.1. By September 30, 2020, the Contractor shall conduct an After Action Review
of activities conducted to date, including one (1) hotwash, and develop an
After-Action Report /Improvement Plan, including corrective actions for
improvement, timelines for their implementation and assignment to
responsible parties, to guide future actions.

1.9. Reporting

1.9.1. The Contractor submit the following Public Health Emergency Preparedness
information and reports to the Department.

1.9.1.1.  Information about COVID-19 activities in the current quarterly
PHEP progress reports using an online system administered by
the DPHS. :

1.9.1.2. Documentation for pertinent COVID-19 response activities
necessary to complete the MCM QOperational Readiness Review
(ORR) or self-assessment as scheduled by DHHS.

1.9.1.3. Final After Action Report/Improvement Plan for the activity
described in paragraph 1.4.1.

1.9.1.4. Final After Action Report{s)/Improvement Plan(s) for any other
drill(s) or exercise(s) conducted.

1.9.1.5. Other information that may be required by federal and state
funders during the contract period.

1.10. Training and Technical Assistance Requirements

1.10.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and trainings specific to COVID-19
preparedness and response convened by the Department.

Greater Seacoast Community Health Exhibit A-1 Contrector Initials m'/
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Regiona! Public Haalth Natwork Services Exhiblt 81, Program Funding. Amendment i3

Vandor Nama: Gi S [ o y Health
Contract Name: Reglonal Public Health Network Services
Reglon: Strafford County
Progeam Name and Funding A
Chlldhood Load
i Young Adult Pohsoning
*Public Health | Aubstance Misus Pravention
Public Heatth Emeargency Public Health Crisis | Medical Reserve Subrstance Misuse Proventicin School-Based Community Hepatiis A
Sints Fiscal Yexr Advisory Counell dness Response Corps Activities PrevenSon Continuum of Care Strategies® v CEnics A Vaccination Clinles
2019 3 L I ] . 3 > 1S - 3 — $ - $ - 13 1,200.00 {3 10,000.00
2020 $ 30,000.00 | 3§ 92.580.00 350,000 {8 10.000.00 | 5 87,380.00 | § 4363400 | § 1058120G | § 1500000 | 3 188200 % 10,000.00
2021 3 3000000 | § $258000 1% - 5 100000018 67.280.00 | & 45634.00 | § 2250000 (8 1500000 | 3 601800 } 3 -
"Young Adult Strategies State Fiscal Year 2021 Funding ends September 30, 2020,
Greater Seacosst Commun ity Health
Contractar lniﬂﬂs:\//L

Eehibit 8-1, Program Funding, Amendmer 13
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, Williem 8. Gardser, Searctury of St of the State of New Hampahire, do beréby oértidy st GREATER SEACOAST
COMMUNITY HEALTH b o New Harmpshins Noogrofit Corporation registered o tantect business in New Hampabire a0
August 18, 1971 1 Anther cerdlfy that all foes and documents required by the Secratery of Stas's offioe hove been received and is
lo good standing a9 far a3 this office b conoerned.

Buginess [D: 65887
Certificate Number; (004452408

IN TBSTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 boreto sct my hund end ctuse to bo effixed
the Seal of the Stxts of New Hempshire,
@y Ist day of Agil AD. 2019,

Borhdr
WImm'H. Curdner
_Scmtnry of Sinto




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
1, Barbara Henry, of Greater Seacoast Community Health, do hereby certify that:
L. I am the duly elected Board Chair of Greater Seacoast Community Health;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a rheetiug of the Board of
Directors of Greater Seacoast Community Health, duly held on January 27, 2020;

Resolved: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services for the provision of Public Heslth
Services.

Resolved: That the Chief Executive Oﬂic&, Janet Laatsch, is hereby anthorized on behalf of
this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all

documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications

thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. .
3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and
effectasof ___Jdiine ) ; 2020,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of Greater Seacoast

Community Health this 1% _day of 3 € . 2020. [ .

Barbara Henry, Board Chair |

STATR OF NH

' COUNTY OF STRAFFORD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this___day of , 2020
by Barbara Henry.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:




e GOODCOM-01 JTHAMM
ACCRD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE el

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statoment on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

procucen Liconsa # AGRE150

SolTAcT Bret Cote

Clark Insurance 'P&m! - FAX
One Sundial Ave Sulte 302N AAX:, No, Ext); [AKC, Na):
Manchestar, NH 03103 | 538k es. boote@clarkinsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE RAIC #
suner a: Tri-State Insurance Company of Minnesota 131003
INSURED Groater Seacoast Community Health, Inc. insyaer o Acadia 31325
dba Goodwin Community Health, Famities First | msunrer ¢ : Tachnology Insurance Company 42376
?ﬂSRC?thnn::gily Organization, Lilac City Pediatrics msurer 0 : AIX Speclalty Insurance Co 12833
oute
Somersworth, NH 03878 INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE